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Corporate Information
EXRER

Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong (Chief Executive Officer and Chairman)

Mr. Lin En Fu

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lin Chien Hsin

Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen
Ms. Wu Chiao Ru

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chu Meng Chi

Ms. Chan Mei Sze
Ms. Lin Yan Jenny

Head Office and Principal Place of Business
Unit 810, 8/F, Tower B, Hunghom Commercial Centre

37 Ma Tau Wai Road
To Kwa Wan
Kowloon

Hong Kong

Registered Office
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Principal Share Registrar
Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar

Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong
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Principal Banker
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Tsim Sha Tsui Branch
82-84 Nathan Road
Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon

Hong Kong

Auditor
BDO Limited

25th Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

Compliance Officer
Mr. Lin En Fu

Audit Committee
Mr. Chu Meng Chi

Ms. Chan Mei Sze
Ms. Lin Yan Jenny

Company Secretary and Financial Controller
Mr. Wong Lam (FCPA, MBA)

Authorised Representatives
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong

Mr. Wong Lam (FCPA, MBA)

Company Website

www.thizgroup.com
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB R T

Business Review

Since the beginning of this year (2016), Chinese, even the world’s, economic
condition has been disappointing. Fortunately, major economic indicators of the
Mainland reversed in March that the National Bureau of Statistics announced a
6.7% GDP growth rate, which was in line with the market expectation. However,
the economic performance of other major industrial countries, except US, remained
weak.

Since 2015, new supply of office in Shanghai, which is the core part of the Group’s
rental office business, has been emerging. In this year, the supply in non-core
business district peaked at over 2,000,000 m2, a double of the average supply of the
last three years. With such increasing supply in future, the property rent is hard to rise.

The Group’s investment in rental properties in Puxi, Shanghai, PRC, is the Group’s
major project. As the recurring income from rental office is stable, together with
income from other business, the Group has recorded a higher gross profit margin.
In addition, fair value of such investment properties increased with the rebound of
property market, which also contributes a premium income to the Group.

Prospect

The GDP of Shanghai, PRC, was RMB2.5 ftrillion in last year, representing an
increase of 6.9% as compared with 2014, remaining the number one city in PRC in
terms of GDP. However, PRC is undergoing a critical stage of transformation and
transformation with continuous difficulties due to the structural adjustment. Together
with numerous uncertainties in the international market, the economy is still under a
downward pressure.

According to the forecast, new supply of rental office in Shanghai will peak within the
year with a slight drop in 2017. Although there is strong demand for office in Shanghai,
it still takes time to take up such large amount of new supply.

Shanghai, as an international financial hub, has considerable room for future
development. Though the government tends to implement control measures when
the market is getting hot, the Group remains prudently optimistic about the office
market in Shanghai. As for operation and management, the Group will keep closely
monitoring the rental property market in order to maximize the contribution of the
Group’s existing properties. As for business development, the Group will continue to
look for new targets in order to expand our overall business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Financial Review

The Group’s consolidated revenue from principal activities amounted to
HK$1,925,000 (2015: HK$1,780,000). During the year, loss before taxation for the
year was HK$4,340,000, compared to profit before taxation of HK$1,185,000 in the
corresponding period of last year.

Gross profit for the Group increased from HK$1,708,000 in 2015 to HK$1,855,000 in
2016, while the gross profit margin remained at 96% due to steady profit margin for
rental income.

Total operating costs were approximately HK$6,255,000 (2015: HK$7,155,000).
Compared to last year, the operating costs have decreased by 13%.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company and loss per share for the year were
HK$4,933,000 (2015: profit of HK$655,000) and HK2.2 cents (2015: earnings per
share of HK0.3 cents) respectively.

Financial resources, liquidity and capital structure

As at 31 March 2016, total assets of the Group amounted to HK$57,822,000
(2015: HK$64,803,000). Current assets amounted to HK$14,995,000 (2015:
HK$21,041,000), of which HK$14,613,000 (2015: HK$20,598,000) were cash and
bank deposits. Current liabilities of HK$3,238,000 (2015: HK$3,682,000) mainly
comprised of trade payables, receipts in advance, other payables, deposit received
and accruals and amount due to the spouse of a director. Current ratio of the Group
was 4.6 (2015: 5.7) and gearing ratio of the Group was 1.3 (2015: 1.0) representing the
Group’s borrowings divided by total equity comprising equity attributable to owners of
the Company and reserves.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had net current assets of approximately
HK$11,757,000 (2015: HK$17,359,000).

Foreign exchange risk
The Group’s main operations are in the PRC and Taiwan and its income and
expenses are transacted in Renminbi (“RMB”) and New Taiwan Dollar (“NT$”)

respectively. Accordingly, it has no significant exposure to foreign exchange risk.

Charges on assets and contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had no charge or pledge of assets. Details of
contingent liabilities are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Capital commitments

At the end of reporting period, the Group had no material capital commitment.
Management and employees

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had 20 employees, including the Directors of the
Company. Salaries of employees are primarily based on prevailing market salary

levels. Other employees’ benefits include mandatory provident fund, medical cover
and other insurance.
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Biographical Details of Directors
EEREN

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Hoi Wong

Chief Executive Officer and Chairman

Mr. Wong Hoi Wong, aged 61, is an Executive Director and a founder of the Group.
Mr. Wong has over 30 years’ experience in sales and marketing, in particular in
electronics and computer industries. Mr. Wong was the Chairman of Association of
Electronic Components Industry of Taipei from 1990 to 1993. He oversees the sales
and marketing strategies of the Group. Mr. Wong graduated from the Department of
Industrial Management of Tamsui Oxford College in Taiwan with a diploma and a MBA
of the University of South Australia.

Mr. Lin En Fu

Mr. Lin En Fu, aged 60, is currently the Chief Operational Officer of the Company. He
holds a Master degree in Economics of the University of Kansas and had served for
First Commercial Bank of Taiwan for 21 years.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lin Chien Hsin

Mr. Lin Chien Hsin, aged 62, graduated from the Economic Faculty of Taiwan
University and had been involved in research studies in Harvard and Standford
Business Schools. He was the Vice President of Holtek Semiconductor Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. in 1999. Besides, he was also the Chief Financial Officer of United
Microelectronics Corporation from 1983 to 2001, a semi-conductor manufacturer
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Taiwan, and had been working
there for about 18 years.

Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen

Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen, aged 51, graduated from the department of Broadcasting and
TV of Shih Hsin University in Taiwan. She was the Executive Secretary of Franklin
Advisors Inc. and subsequently worked as the Vice President of Le Kao Co., Ltd. Ms.
Hsieh has extensive experience in the field of administration and management.

Ms. Wu Chiao Ru

Ms. Wu Chiao Ru, aged 48, graduated with a Master Degree in Management from
Yuan Ze University in Taiwan. She was the Assistant to President of Lung Hwa
Electronics Co., Ltd. from 2002 to 2003, and subsequently the Vice President of Chi
Fu Jong Hua Co., Ltd. Ms. Wu has extensive experience in the field of public relations
and consultancy.
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Biographical Details of Directors (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chu Meng Chi

Mr. Chu Meng Chi, aged 51. He obtained a Bachelor degree in Business
Administration from the Taiwan National Sun Yat-sen University. Mr. Chu has over 20
years’ experience in the field of corporate administration and financial investment.

Ms. Chan Mei Sze

Ms. Chan Mei Sze, aged 51, is an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and fellow member of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. She has over 23 years’ accounting and finance experience in various
industries in Hong Kong.

Ms. Lin Yan Jenny
Ms. Lin Yan Jenny, aged 45, has a master degree from the New York Institute of
Technology-Vancouver in Canada. She has over 20 years’ management experience

in various industries.
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Corporate Governance Report

SR RS

INTRODUCTION

The Company endeavors to comply with all the code provisions on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in the GEM Listing Rules by establishing a formal and
transparent procedure to protect and maximise the interests of shareholders during
the year ended 31 March 2016.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings as set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of
all Directors, the Directors have complied with such code of conduct and the required
standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors throughout the year ended 31 March 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for managing the Company on behalf of shareholders.
The Board is of the view that it is the Directors’ responsibility to create value for
shareholders as a whole and safeguard the best interests of the Company and the
shareholders by discharging its duties in a dedicated, diligent and prudent manner on
the principle of good faith.

The Board comprises a total of eight Directors, with two Executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong (CEO and Chairman) and Mr. Lin En Fu; three Non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lin Chien Hsin, Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen and Ms. Wu Chiao Ru and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Lin Yan Jenny, Mr. Chu
Meng Chi and Ms. Chan Mei Sze.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of the
view that all Independent Non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with
the terms of the guidelines.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The primary functions of the Board include:

0

(i)

(v)

(vi)

deciding on the overall strategies, overseeing operational and financial
performance and formulating appropriate policies to manage risk exposure
associated with realising the strategies and goals of the Group;

being held accountable for the internal control system of the Company and
responsible for reviewing its effectiveness;

being ultimately responsible for preparing financial accounts and discussing the
performance, financial conditions and prospects of the Company in a balanced,
clear and comprehensible manner. These responsibilities are applicable to
quarterly, interim and annual reports of the Company, other price sensitive
announcements published according to the GEM Listing Rules and disclosure
of other financial information, reports submitted to regulatory bodies and
information disclosable under statutory requirements; and regularly reviewing
its own functions and the powers conferred upon Executive Directors to ensure
appropriate arrangements are in place;

whilst Executive Directors, who oversee the overall business of the Company,
are responsible for the daily operations of the Company, the Board is
responsible for affairs involving the overall policies, finance and shareholders of
the Company, namely financial statements, dividend policy, significant changes
to accounting policies, annual operating budgets, material contracts, major
financing arrangements, principal investment and risk management strategy;

the management is well informed of its powers and duties with clear guidelines
and instructions, in particular regarding situations under which reporting to the
Board is necessary and matters that require the approval of the Board before
any decisions or commitments can be made on behalf of the Company; and

the full Board meets at least four times a year, at approximately quarterly
intervals, to review the financial performance, results of each period, material
investments and other matters of the Group that require the resolution of the
Board. Simultaneous conference call may be used to improve attendance
when Individual Director cannot attend the meeting in person. Opinions of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are actively sought by the Company if they
are unable to attend the meeting in person.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

tRERHE (H)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

(vii)  The terms of reference of the Board also include:

a) to develop and review the policies and practices on corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development

of directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the policies and practices on compliance with legal

and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to

employees and directors; and

(e) to review the compliance with the Code and disclosure in the Corporate

Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, list of Directors and the attendance records of

the Directors and members of the committees:

Total Number of Meetings

Number of meetings
attended/eligible to attend

Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong
Mr. Lin En Fu

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen
Ms. Wu Chiao Ru
Mr. Lin Chien Hsin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chu Meng Chi
Ms. Chan Mei Sze
Ms. Lin Yan Jenny
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group has adopted a set of Code on Corporate Governance (“Company Code”)
which sets out the corporate standards and practices used by the Group to direct
and manage its business affairs. It is prepared by referencing to the principles, code
provisions and recommended best practices set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance (“GEM Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Board will continue to monitor and revise the Company Code and assess the
effectiveness of our corporate governance practices in tandem with changes in the
environment and requirements under the GEM Code, to ensure the Company Code is
in line with the expectations and interests of shareholders and comply with the GEM
Code.

Except as mentioned below, the Company applied the principles and complied with
all the code provisions as set out in the GEM Code.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The GEM Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separated and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer should be clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Wong Hoi Wong is both the Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Company
who is responsible for managing the Board and the Group business. The Board
considers that, with the present board structure and scope of business of the Group,
there is no imminent need to separate the roles into two individuals as Mr. Wong is
perfectly capable of distinguishing the priority of these roles in which he has been
acting. However, the Board will continue to review the effectiveness of the Group
corporate governance structure to assess whether the separation of the positions of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is necessary.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under the GEM Code Provision A.4.1, all the Non-executive Directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. At present, the Non-executive
Directors are not appointed for a specific term, but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

Code Provision A.6.7 and E.1.2

Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that Independent Non-executive Directors and other
Non-executive Directors should attend general meeting and have a fair understanding
of the shareholders’ opinion. Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the Chairman of the
Board should attend the Annual General Meeting and also invite the Chairmen of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and any
other committee to the meeting.

Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors could not attend
the Annual General Meeting held on 29 September 2015 due to extraordinary
business activities and unexpected events.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

tRERHE (F

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

The Company reports to all Directors regularly to allow the Directors to fully
understand the responsibility they share in the operation and the business of the
Group. The Group arranges professional development training for all Directors to
broaden and update their knowledge and skills, constantly informs all Directors about
the GEM Listing Rules and the latest development of other applicable regulations
to ensure the Directors comply with relevant regulation and raise their awareness
of good corporate governance practices. All Directors have provided their training
record.

The records of training the Directors received during the year ended 31 March 2016
are as follows:

Name of Directors EEHE
Executive Directors PTEE
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong FElEsk4E
Mr. Lin En Fu MEBRE
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen WEHEL T
Ms. Wu Chiao Ru ARI5NZ =
Mr. Lin Chien Hsin MREFT T
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Chu Meng Chi Ra#EE
Ms. Chan Mei Sze PREFF 2+
Ms. Lin Yan Jenny Mk 1=
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

INSURANCE FOR DIRECTORS AND SENIOR STAFF

The Company has made appropriate arrangement regarding insurance, which covers
potential legal action faced by Directors and senior staff.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong Lam is the Company Secretary of the Company. His authorized duties
include ensuring the Board of Directors to operate effectively and fulfill its duties,
drafting agenda for the Board of Directors’ meetings and shareholders’ meetings and
ensuring the clear and effective communication among members of the Board and
also between members of the Board and the shareholders and management. During
the year, the company secretary has undergone professional training for over 15
hours to gain the most updated knowledge to facilitate his discharge of duties.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Membership

1. The Committee shall consist of 3 Independent Non-Executive Directors
appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company from time to time.

2. The Board shall nominate one of the members as the Chairman of the
Committee.

3. The Company Secretary or his nominee shall act as the Committee’s
Secretary.

Frequency and proceedings of meetings

4. The Committee shall meet at least once every year.

5. The Chairman of the Committee may convene additional meetings at his
discretion.

6. The quorum of a meeting shall be 2 members of the Committee.

7. Proceedings of meetings of the Committee shall be governed by the provisions

of the Articles of Association of the Company.

Duties, powers and functions

8. The Committee shall:

(@) implement the remuneration policy laid down by the Board;

(b) recommend to the Board the policy and structure for the remuneration

of Directors and senior management;

() review the remuneration of Directors and senior management;

ﬁ%gtél\ (nﬁ)

FERSRBE R

AABCHEHEERRLH  BREESRSEBETEE
ERITE) -

NSIETES

FTHEERARAZARIME BER BB RERRESS
BREERETEES BESEFg e MR GHARE
&ﬁﬁf%éiAﬁXé!ZFﬁliﬁiﬂx%& EEBEMMRL - AF

ARIWEC 2R 15/ 2 AR ERIEY - SRS
%HE%& P BN EEITRE -

i
=
XA
il
08)

2
m

1. ZREERARREFSTHREN=RBILIFNTES

HRK -

3.  REAMEIERBARETZESWE -

SRR ESRERF

sEABRGRAEL R -

N
X
]
8
&

[¢)]
XA
o
IuE>

FRBTREARBEIG

6. —REBENEBKERNEATAR -

7. ZEERRNREEFIAQARMAMERANMRE -

BE - N

8. ZEgE

\\\

@) BITEFSETHOHHIBER

(b) BEFREREEALFHORERGHAES
iR

© BINEERSRERABNFHGE

BIRs RIS E AR AR 2015/16 F3k

13



14

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
EEERRE (B)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued) HMZES (18)
Duties, powers and functions (continued) B8 - @NOKBEE (&)

(d) review and approve the compensation arrangements in connection () wrl R EE S EREE RS AR I RS SRE
with any loss or termination of their office or appointment, or dismissal ERATAKRE MEFERERE RIS RNEER
or removal for misconduct to Directors; HE

(e) review the criteria for assessing employee performance, which should (e) Rl E B RIRA AR - ARXERARMAR
reflect the Company’s business objectives and targets; AINEBENREEZ

() consider the annual performance bonus for Executive Directors, ) BENTES RREEAEBR—REINRKR
senior management, and the general staff, having regard to their HEHIFIZERRIT2EMHIZE  EZHEBEAE
achievements against the performance criteria and by reference to DETWMEERBIEA  EmrnEEeREE
market norms and make recommendation to the Board; =

(9  do any such things to enable the Committee to discharge its powers (@ HERIEMTESFEEZEerBITEESE THED
and functions conferred on it by the Board; and Kiee - &

(h)  conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may from HEESETHRIETENARAAMER TR
time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the constitution XA BT E BRI ESK « I8R R -
of the Company or imposed by legislation.

=

9. The Committee shall be provided with sufficient resources to enable it to 9. ZEERERETEBIRABITERAE -
perform its functions.

Reporting Procedures (ERIER
10.  The Committee shall report to the Board on a regular basis. 10. ZESATFTHRNEZEZSENR -

The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Chu Meng Chi, an Independent HNEE ST FEABIIFNITEEARAGELE MEMKESR
Non-executive Director, and other members include Ms. Lin Yan Jenny and Ms. Chan EM T REESL T A IERITES -
Mei Sze being Independent Non-executive Directors.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee of the Company convened one FN - ARFIZTFNEEEEH—AeH  SIWAEEHET
meeting, and all matters concerning the determination of remuneration of the EENRREEEBHFMEE - I FNEEGE—FP =S
Directors and senior management were discussed. In addition, the remuneration BERAREENSREIRE 2 HMECR MRS - AN AEE
policies and incentive mechanism applicable to the Directors and senior management CEBEGMEE  WRZEeH tRESeEHEEES -
and the overall remuneration system of the Group were further refined and reasonable

recommendations were made to the Board in the meeting.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE RETES8

Membership [

1, The Committee shall consist of 5 Directors appointed by the Company’s Board 1, ZEEHARAESTETHEANABESET &4
of Directors from time to time, at least 3 of them shall be Independent Non- =RBEB IENITES -

executive Directors.

2. The Board shall designate one of the members as the Committee’s Chairman. 2. EFeAETZEENENER—ARZESER -

3. The Company Secretary or his nominee shall act as the Committee’s 3. NAMERHEREABETZESGWE -
Secretary.

Thiz Technology Group Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Frequency and proceedings of meetings

4. The Committee shall meet at least once annually.

5. In addition, the Committee’s Chairman may convene additional meetings at his
discretion.

6. The quorum of a meeting shall be 3 Committee members.

7. Proceedings of the Committee’s meetings shall be governed by the

Company’s Articles of Association.

Duties, powers and functions
8. The Committee shall:

(@) regularly review the structure, size and composition of the Board; and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
implement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(b) identify and nominate candidates to the Board;

() assess the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors;

(d) make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
succession planning for the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer as
well as the senior management;

(e) do any such things to enable the Committee to discharge its powers
and functions conferred on it by the Board; and

) conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may from
time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the Company’s
constitution or imposed by legislation.

9. The Committee shall be provided with sufficient resources to enable it to
perform its functions.

Reporting Procedures
10.  The Committee shall report to the Board on a regular basis.

The Nomination Committee of the Company currently comprises five Directors,
including two Executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Hoi Wong and Mr. Lin En Fu,
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Lin Yan Jenny, Mr. Chu
Meng Chi and Ms. Chan Mei Sze, the Chairman of the Committee is Mr. Wong Hoi
Wong.

During the year, the committee convened one meeting, reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board; and made recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to implement the Company’s corporate strategy and
discharged its powers and functions conferred on it by the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
EEERRE (B)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial

statements of the Group and ensure that the financial statements are in accordance

with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors also

ensure the timely publication of the financial statements of the Group.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, BDO Limited, about their

reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the

Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 28 to 29 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

@)

The Audit Committee of the Company currently comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Lin Yan Jenny, Mr. Chu Meng Chi and
Ms. Chan Mei Sze. The Audit Committee possesses a wealth of experience and
expertise including accounting profession, and regulatory experience both in
Hong Kong, Taiwan and the PRC. The Chairman of the committee is Mr. Chu
Meng Chi.

During the year, the Board reviewed the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee and has made relevant amendments to accommodate the
requirements of the GEM Code, where appropriate.

The primary function of the Audit Committee is to review and supervise the
Group’s financial reporting system, internal control procedures and to maintain
good and independent communications with the management as well as auditor
of the Company.

In discharging its responsibility, the Audit Committee has performed the
following work:

()  reviewed the draft annual and quarterly financial statements and draft
results announcements during the year; and

(i) reviewed, in conjunction with the auditor, the development of accounting
standards and assessed their potential impacts on the Group’s financial
statements.

The Audit Committee met four times during the year to review the results of the
Group.

Audit Committee is to be responsible for making recommendation to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and
any questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

AUDITOR

During the year ended 31 March 2016, audit service fees payable to auditors
amounted to HK$560,000 (2015: HK$556,000). No non-audit service fee was
payable to auditors during the year (2015: Nil).

Internal control and risk management

The Board is responsible for a reliable and efficient internal control and risk
management system of the Group and reviews whether the operation is adequate
and effective through the Audit Committee.

Internal control and risk management system includes the management, the authority
and responsibilities of whom is as follows:

1) help to achieve business target and protect the Group’s assets;

2 ensure the proper maintenance and reliability of accounting record and
financial report;

3) ensure compliance with relevant regulations; and
(4) Identify and reduce the Group’s major risk.

The purpose of establishing internal control and risk management system is to
reasonably prevent the Group from material mistake and loss and to closely monitor
the risks threatening the Group to achieve targets.

During this financial year, according to the assessment of the Group’s management,
the Audit Committee believes that:

A. the Group has conducted an identification, assessment and management
process for material risks threatening to its businesses; and

B. an effective and proper internal control and risk management system has been
maintained throughout this financial year.

Given the simple nature of the Group’s business projects and sufficient resources
during the financial year, the Group did not establish a special internal audit
department. In future, the Board will have an annual review to assess whether it is
necessary to set up such department to carry out internal audit.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
J/J:\%”E I:l (nﬁ)

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no significant change in the constitutional documents during the year.

PARTICULARS OF SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

1.

The Articles of Association set out the rights of our shareholders.

All shares have the same voting rights and are entitled to the dividends
declared.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Shareholder(s) holding not less than
one-tenth of the paid-up capital may request the Board to convene an
extraordinary general meeting. The objects of the meeting must be stated in
the related requisition deposited at the registered office.

For including a resolution relating to other matters in a general meeting,
shareholders are requested to follow the requirements and procedures as set
out in the Articles of Association.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, if a shareholder wish to propose a
person other than a retiring Director for election as a Director at a general
meeting, the shareholder should deposit a written notice of nomination which
shall be given to the Company Secretary within the 7-day period commencing
the day after the despatch of the notice of the meeting (or such other period as
may be determined and announced by the Directors from time to time).

Shareholders have the right to receive corporate communications in hard
copies.

Shareholders whose shares held in the Central Clearing and Settlement
System (CCASS) may notify us from time to time through Hong Kong
Securities Clearing Company Limited if they wish to receive our corporate
communications.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

1. This Policy aims to set out the provisions with the objective of ensuring
Shareholders are provided with information about the Company, in order to
enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to
allow Shareholders to engage actively with the Company.

2. The Board shall maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders, and will
regularly review this Policy to ensure its effectiveness.

3. Information shall be communicated to Shareholders mainly through
the Company’s financial reports, annual general meetings and other
general meetings that may be convened, as well as by making available
all the disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange and its corporate
communications and other corporate publications on the website.

4, Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company’s Registrar.

5. Corporate communication will be provided to Shareholders in plain language
and in both English and Chinese versions to facilitate Shareholders’
understanding. Information released by the Company to the Stock Exchange
is also posted on the Company’s website immediately thereafter. Such
information includes financial statements, results announcements, circulars
and notices of general meetings and associated explanatory documents etc.

6. Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to appoint
proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are
unable to attend the meetings. Board members, appropriate management
executives and external auditor will attend annual general meetings to answer
Shareholders’ questions.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company’s Board adopted a Board Diversity Policy. Under the Policy, the
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board with
a vision for the Company to achieve a sustainable and balanced development.
Appointments of directors are made on merits, including but not limited to, sex, age,
cultural and educational background, while having due regard for the benefits of
diversity of the Board. They represent diverse career experience in both international
and local enterprises. They bring with them diverse professional backgrounds,
spanning management, advisory and finance.

The Board composition reflects various cultural and educational backgrounds,
professional development, length of service, knowledge of the Company and a broad
range of individual attributes, interests and values. The Board considers the current
line-up has provided the Company with a good balance and diversity of skills and
experience for the requirements of its business. The Board will continue to review
its composition from time to time taking into consideration board diversity for the
requirements and benefits of the Company’s business.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B HBREREE

The Group recognises the importance of environmental protection and thereby
endeavors to look for environmental protection solution to achieve low-carbon and
simple office culture in order to create a better future.

Environmental Protection

The Group strongly encourages the staff to implement a green office culture, such
as, if possible, sending and scanning documents by email in order to reduce paper
usage. Meanwhile, we also require staff to use recycled papers first for printing
internal documents and minimizes the using of one-off products. In addition, in order
to reduce the environmental impact of staff's business trip, we hold meetings by
teleconference as far as possible, which can reduce the cost of business trip, on the
other hand, can minimize the adverse environmental impact from travelling. Besides,
we ask our clients to provide electronic monthly statements as far as possible to
reduce paper usage.

Since the conservation of global environment and natural resources has fundamental
impact to the human beings, it is the responsibility of all our peoples to protect the
environment. We reduce energy and natural resources consumption in practice,
reduce wastes, and choose renewable and recycled products as far as possible.
In addition, we encourage our clients and suppliers to attach importance to
environmental measures and practice.

Employment Policy

The Group equally treats every employee without considering their ethnicity, race,
nationality, sex, religion, age and marriage status when determining their employment,
remuneration package and promotion. To create a diversified working environment,
we hope that all staff can appreciate, take care and respect each other regardless of
their difference.

Fostering talents

Staff is the most important asset of the Group. Therefore, the Group pays serious
attention to the promotion and training of staff. In addition, to providing internal
and external training and career development opportunities to our staff. Our senior
management maintains communication with the staff at any time, encourage and
guide the staff to put their energy into work and inspirit them to work hard together to
fulfill our business targets.

We foster professional team through training in order to support our sustainable
business development.

Working environment

The Group’s human resources policy is to attract and foster excellent talents and
provide a proper environment for them to unlock their potential. Therefore, prefect
staff management system, reasonable remuneration and benefit package, supportive
training and development solution, optimized working environment and adequate
health-and medical and operation safety insurance are important measures for our
human resources strategy.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

We will establish a working environment without worry to realize our common vision
and share the result of sustainable development with our staff.

Supply Chain Management

The Group relies on the products and services from the suppliers to support our
business operation and to provide quality services to customers. Accordingly,
effective supply chain management is an important part of the Group’s operation.
As such regard, we establish a set of standards to review the suppliers’ quality,
including their practices in environmental protection, social responsibility and
ethics. Meanwhile, we set up a transparent and arm length procuring procedure.
Before placing orders for products and services, the Group conducts a
qualification assessment on the supplier to ensure to obtain the best products
from a suitable supplier. The assessment includes reviewing the supplier’s costs,
quality, environmental protection awareness, conduct, and performance of social
responsibility.

Such requirements to suppliers are not only for protect our business, but also
represent our effort to fulfill social responsibility.

Regulatory Governance

The Group requires all staff to be superb, professional and honest. In order to ensure
all staff formalized with and strictly following each relevant regulations and code of
conducts, the Group set up a code of conducts that our staff must strictly comply
with, which lists the matters all staff shall have to follow, covering relevant matters
in relation to regulations and governance, including prevention of bribery, use of
information and personal conduct.

Community

The Group supports community activities and strives to serve our community and
promote community development with a view to create a harmonious community
and to fulfill our responsibility as a corporate citizen, as we know it is favorable for the
Group’s business development in a society with hope, love and care.

The Group actively builds up a corporate culture for loving and caring society by
encouraging staff to engage in voluntary service in community, bringing social
activities into our activities, which improves staff’s belongingness and loyalty while
giving back to the community.
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT REPORTING

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year is set out in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The financial performance of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 and the
financial position of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out on pages
30 to 85.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 35 and in note 27(d) to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2016, the Company had no distributable reserves.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set out in note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for the pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on pages 86 to 87.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong
Mr. Lin En Fu

Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen
Ms. Wu Chiao Ru
Mr. Lin Chien Hsin

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chu Meng Chi
Ms. Chan Mei Sze
Ms. Lin Yan Jenny

In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Lin En
Fu, Mr. Chu Meng Chi and Ms. Chan Mei Sze shall retire from the Board by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Apart from the transactions as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
E;ﬁ' (nﬁ)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2016, the interests or short positions of the Directors and Chief
Executives in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), Chapter 571 under the Laws of Hong Kong), which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they have taken or deemed
to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to Rule 5.61 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(a) Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the
Company

EERTSTRASRRATES 2 @5

RZZE—REZA=+—H SEEREIBITHABRNEAT
&EEH*H%&@ (EERBBEDFEST BES LT
(IFEHEEEGD D) EXVER) 2 iy - 1R ﬁ%%ﬁ{f
AREES R EGIIEXVEE 7 R8DHEMEERR

Rz EmE R (BEREE SR AE G A ImXﬂﬁ#%)i
BB RERZRRRER)  IREFFRPEEPIFE352
BRBLENZIGX At 2 LMz #RAHER - HRIBAIZER
ERAIES.61 FAME R R R Rz EmERMmT

(a) R TSERKIBERN R

Type of interests and Percentage
number of shares held of the
ERERNRAERGEE Company’s
Personal Other issued share
Name of director interest interest Total capital
=R SN
BEBITRA
ESnR BAREZR HitiEz st Ak
(Note)
(Hi73)
Mr. Lin Chien Hsin 5,295,000 - 5,295,000 2.35%
MEHT R E
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong - 1,508,600 1,508,600 0.67%
ToEEE

Note: These shares are registered in the name of Eaglemax International Investment Limited
(“ElIL"), a company owned by Intelligent Management Limited (“IML”") as the trustee of
Intelligent Management Discretionary Trust, a family discretionary trust, the objects of
which include Mr. Wong Hoi Wong, his family and any charity in the world. As at 31
March 2016, Mr. Wong Hoi Wong held the entire issued share capital of IML. By virtue
of SFO, Mr. Wong Hoi Wong has an interest of such shares.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 March 2016, none of the Directors had short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 March 2016, none of the Directors had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to Rule 5.61 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2016, the following persons (not being the Directors and Chief
Executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO as follows:
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Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of shareholder Nature of interests shares held issued share capital
B8 HEBRITREZ

REREHE ERME ROHE BHEDL
Ms. Wang Ying Fang Beneficial Bz 40,000,000 17.73%

Wang Ying Fang Z+

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, there was no person (not being
the Directors and Chief Executives of the Company) who had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
BEEgRE (E)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the percentage of purchase attributable to the five largest suppliers in
aggregate is less than 30%.

The sales to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 88%
of the total sales for the year and the sales to the largest customer included therein
accounted for approximately 38%.

None of the Directors, their respective associates and shareholders of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company) had any interest in any of the five largest customers and
suppliers of the Group for the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules during the year are set
out in note 32(a) and (b) to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, the substantial shareholders or the management shareholders
(as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interests in any business which
competed with or might compete with the business of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31
March 2016.

CORPORATE STRATEGY

The Group’s strategy is to generate stable income through property investment.
Our corporate values rest in growing the presence of our existing businesses and
identifying new business and investment opportunities not limited to our current
businesses in order to deliver value to both our customers and our shareholders.
All such opportunities will continue to be diligently and carefully evaluated by the
Board with the view of delivering value to our shareholders. We believe implementing
disciplined business strategies and prudent financial management serves this
purpose by preserving the longevity and sustainability of our businesses.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee with written terms of reference in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The duties of the Audit Committee are to
review and to provide supervision over the financial reporting process and internal
control system of the Group. The Audit Committee comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Lin Yan Jenny, Mr. Chu Meng Chi and Ms. Chan
Mei Sze.

During the year, the Audit Committee has met four times to review the results of the
Group.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been audited by BDO
Limited.

BDO Limited retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting of the Company to re-
appoint Messrs. BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

By Order of the Board

Wong Hoi Wong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THIZ TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
(ENEFRIEEEAER A F)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Thiz Technology Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages
30 to 85, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2016, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with the terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgements, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2016 and of its financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Chi Wai
Practising Certificate Number: P04945

Hong Kong, 28 June 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income
GEREREMEEEER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZ=Z— R "F=A=+—HILFE

30

2016 2015
ZE-XRF —E-RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
PEE FHT FHIT
Revenue A 5 1,925 1,780
Cost of sales and services SHE RARISA AR (70) (72)
Gross profit EH 1,855 1,708
Other revenue and gains EA A R Wa 5 969 7,404
General and administrative expenses —EITHER (6,255) (7,155)
Finance costs BUE KA 7 (909) (772)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRFLRT (E51R), SR 8 (4,340) 1,185
Taxation BiIA 11(a) (602) (540)
(Loss)/profit for the year NEE (ER),5H) (4,942) 645
Other comprehensive income Hin 2 E =
ltem that may be subsequently re-classified HEgnsmoEs
to profit or loss: BmMIER -
Currency translation differences EisRE R (1,701) 15
Total comprehensive income for the year AEERHEKNEHEEE (6,643) 660
(Loss)/profit attributable to: LU BEAE (B518),a Al -
— Owners of the Company EAVNEILZ=N (4,933) 655
— Non-controlling interest — IR 9) (10)
(4,942) 645
Total comprehensive income for UTEEAFEZEKRREE
the year attributable to:
— Owners of the Company EAVNEIE 2N (6,634) 670
- Non-controlling interest — IR (9) (10)
(6,643) 660
(Loss)/earnings per share: SR (EB),S5F
— Basic and diluted (in cents) — EARREE (L) 13 (2.2) 0.3
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBRIAER

At 31 March 2016 RZZT—A"F=A=+—H

2016 2015
ZE-RF —Z=—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
b FExT FAT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment LE e 14 13 12
Investment properties REME 15 42,814 43,750
42,827 43,762
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables, PR EoAth U R IE
deposits and prepayments e RFEMNFIE 17 382 443
Bank balances and cash RITHEEFENIRE 18 14,613 20,598
14,995 21,041
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FETERIA 19 - 63
Receipts in advance U IR 544 511
Other payables, deposits received and HibfEEE  BiEE R
accruals FEETFRIA 20 1,825 1,840
Amount due to the spouse of a director ENZESEBRIA 21 869 1,268
3,238 3,682
Net current assets REBEEFE 11,757 17,359
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 54,584 61,121
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Amount due to a director FENEENIEA 22 4,789 5,907
Amount due to a shareholder FERT AR KA 23 24,981 24,291
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEE & 11(o) 1,611 1,077
31,381 31,275
Net assets EEFE 23,203 29,846
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
AR R (&)

At 31 March 2016 R=ZT—X~F=A=+—H

2016 2015
ZE-XRF —ZT—FhF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
P FHT FAT
EQUITY s

Share capital B 24 225,570 225,570
Reserves Ei (202,052) (195,418)

Equity attributable to owners EATEEA
of the Company PR 23,518 30,152
Non-controlling interest R ER (315) (306)
Total equity EREE 23,203 29,846

These consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by WEGAVBERENR _Z—"ENATN\BEESS AR

the Board of Directors on 28 June 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: BT WA TIIESRREE
Director Director E E
WONG HOI WONG LIN EN FU b WEH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BEREREXR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZ=T— X XF=-A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E-KREF —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Cash flows from operating activities REEKCHERE
(Loss)/profit before taxation FRELAT (E518), %= (4,340) 1,185
Adjustments for: FE
Fair value gain on investment properties "EYZE AT ERE (875) (625)
Gain on capitalisation of loans (Note 24(a)) BERENMeME (H7E24(2) - (6,746)
Interest income FEWA (33) (22)
Interest expenses (Note 7) MERZ (FEE7) 909 772
Depreciation e 7 8
Operating cash flows before working EEESHH A LCERESRE
capital changes (4,332) (5,428)
Decrease in trade and other receivables, U EL fth R W SR IE
deposits and prepayments e RIERFIER 61 -
Decrease in trade payables FETRRIE R (63) -
Increase/(decrease) in receipts in advance TadREE M, CRd) 33 (39)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables, deposits HAibFEFIE - EWIZSE
received and accruals MRt FE CRd),/Ean (15) 54
Effect on foreign exchange rate changes INISTE R B E) 2 & 38 11
Cash used in operations EEEBFRARS (4,278) (5,402)
Interest received =& 33 22
Interest paid BEFE (375) (314)
Net cash used in operating activities REERFTARESFE (4,620) (5,694)
Cash flows from investing activities REZBHEHERE
Payments to acquire property, REME
plant and equipment S E = PANE S 8) -
Net cash used in investing activities BRETEHMARESFE 8) -
BNR RIS M AR A R] - 2016/16 FH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued]
GERERER (&

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HEZ=Z— R "F=A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
ZE-XRF —ZT—FhF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FET
Cash flows from financing activities MEIBZHERE
Repayment of principal portion of amount due HEENESEBEENRIE
to the spouse of a director (317) (255)
Repayment of principal portion of HEENESEEHE
amount due to a director (1,040) (880)
Increase in amount due to a shareholder FES AR R FRIALE N - 12,000
Net cash (used in)/generated from RMETE (TR, EE2RLSFE
financing activities (1,357) 10,865
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ReRBLEEER (RL) ENFE
and cash equivalents (5,985) 5171
Cash and cash equivalents at RENzRERBELEEER
beginning of year 20,598 15,427
Cash and cash equivalents at REEZRERBESSHEER
end of year (Note 18) (FzE18) 14,613 20,598

Details of the major non-cash transactions during the year ended 31 March 2015 are BT —RAF=A=1T—BLEFEEAFRESRFINFEH
set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements. RERE B ISRERM FE29 o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REEGEER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZ —Z— /4

+—HIEEE

=A=

802'€e (ste) 815'€T (02282 20L'T 098 8 ee'le 0.5'Sce S s R R g AV 9102 Yose} L€ Je 9oueleq
(er9'9) ©) (7€9'9) (€e6') (o' - - - - EHENETE LY Jeaf 8} 10} BUI0OUl BAISUBLSIAWOO [0 |
(ro't) - (roL't) - (roL') - - - - WEEGHEE Se0URJAYYIP UOIBISUE] Aouaiin)
(ev6'7) ®) (ee6'Y) (ec6'r) - - - - - A EA Jeaf 8y} Joj 8507
9862 (90¢) Zsloe (L68'122) e0v'y 09 8 2212 0.8'see EHZH-HHT—E WY G10g Iy | Ye pue
H—=H=3T-&=H G10C Yose| L€ Je oueed

099 (on 0.9 999 Gl - - - - WHEGWETESY Jeak aU} J0} BUIOOUI BAISUBYSJAWOD (210
Gl - Gl - Gl - - - - BEEGRE SB0UBIBYIP UoNe|SUel) AouaLIng
9 (o 59 et - - - - - M2 Jeak 8y} o} Woid
0950+ - 0550} - - - - (or2'9) 962" LI (ErzEu) Py ELE (e)z ©10N) sueoy Jo uonesieyded
989'8k (962) 266'8k (¢61'822) 838"y 09 8 810've 12'80¢ EHZH-HhBh—& T 102 IUdy | Ye souereq

(Ozzel) (dery) (BzEy) (VCEH)

(©)zze0N)  (@)zz8N)  ([B)Lz 810N) (Z ®10N)
UL pre- 2= vt Lt jre-23 jis- 23 jis- 23 pre- = e
000.$)H 000.$)H 000$YH 000$YH 000$YH 000.$YH 000.$)H 000.$)H 000$YH
EyREY RRAHE K@ BEiE R 22Tt YU EE BROH 2!

Y&
Aynba 1saJa)ul |elop $9SS0| ETVEEE)] EVERE) anIasal wnjwaad |ended
lejoL Buijjonuod palejnwnddy uonejsued]  [eroadg uondwapas  aleys aleys
-UoN [ende)
NEYEB#BTY

Auedwo? ay} Jo SIOUMO 0} 3|qeINqURY

35

2015/16 FFif

AR S E B R AR



36

GENERAL

Thiz Technology Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law (Cap.22 Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands on 6 December 2000. The address of its registered office
and principal place of business are Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and Unit 810, 8/F, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37 Ma Tau Wai Road, To Kwa Wan, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, respectively.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM”).

The Group is principally engaged in (i) property leasing; (i) trading business; and
(i) an information technology industry, in which, it is a developer and provider
of a range of Linux solutions including Linux operating systems, application
systems run on Linux. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs - effective 1 April 2015

The Group has adopted the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants that are effective
for the current accounting period.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle

The adoption of these amendments to HKFRSs has no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but not yet

effective
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the consolidated
financial statements, have been issued, but are not yet effective and have

not been early adopted by the Group:

Effective date

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements (i)
2012-2014 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative (i)

Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable (i)

and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation

and Amortisation

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (ii)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts (ii)
with Customers

HKFRS 16 Leases (iii)

Effective date:

() Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
(i) Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
(i) Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Disclosure Initiative

The amendments are designed to encourage entities to use judgement in
the application of HKAS 1 when considering the layout and content of their
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 - Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of a revenue-based
depreciation method for items of property, plant and equipment. The
amendments to HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that
amortisation based on revenue is not appropriate for intangible assets. This
presumption can be rebutted if either the intangible asset is expressed as
a measure of revenue or revenue and the consumption of the economic
benefits of the intangible asset are highly correlated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
fREMIBREM S (E)

31 March2016 —Z—A~F=HA=+—H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 2. RSB URIRESER (| BB IRE%E
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) 8 ) (#8)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but not yet (b) PABERER ] RIE]IEBUIFRS

effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows (the business model test) and that have contractual
terms that give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding (the contractual cash
flow characteristics test) are generally measured at amortised cost. Debt
instruments that meet the contractual cash flow characteristics test are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) if
the objective of the entity’s business model is both to hold and collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets. Entities may make an
irrevocable election at initial recognition to measure equity instruments that
are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments are
measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model for all financial
assets not measured at FVTPL replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS
39 and new general hedge accounting requirements to allow entities to
better reflect their risk management activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and measurement
requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but not yet

effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition framework. The
core principle of the framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”,
HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps approach to revenue
recognition:

Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to each performance obligation
Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance obligation is

satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue related topics
that may change the current approach taken under HKFRSs. The standard
also significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative disclosures
related to revenue.

HKFRS 16 - Leases

For lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 introduces a single accounting model
and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a
term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
A lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing its
right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing
its obligation to make lease payments. For lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases
or finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases differently.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the potential
impact of these new/revised HKFRSs and the directors are not yet in a
position to state whether these new/revised HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REMBREMEE (F)

31 March 2016 =—Z—~"F=HA=+—H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(c) Amended Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM (“Amended Listing Rules”) relating to the presentation
and disclosures of financial statements

The Amended Listing Rules in relation to the presentation and disclosures
of financial statements, including the amendments with reference to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap 622, apply to the Company in this
financial year.

There is no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance,
however the Amended Listing Rules, impacts on the presentation and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. For example, The
statement of financial position of the Company is now presented in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements rather than as a primary
statement and related notes to the statement of financial position of the
Company are generally no longer presented.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION
(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRS”)
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM (“GEM Listing Rules”).

(b) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified for investment properties, which are
carried at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

(c) Functional and presentation currency

The individual financial statements of each group entity are presented
in the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) which is the functional currency of
the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with unrealised profits
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from the effective
dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using the
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred, liabilities
incurred and equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting
gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a
transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling interest
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s interest and the non-controlling interest are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interest
is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
fREMIBREM S (E)

31 March2016 —Z—A~F=HA=+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combination and basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal
is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest
and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the
subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interest
is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to exercise
control. The Company controls an investee if all three of the following
elements are present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts
and circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of these
elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss.

Historical cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its present working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after the asset has been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, is
charged to the profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where it is probable that future economic benefits of the expenditure will
flow to the entity, and the cost of which can be measured reliably, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of the asset or a separate
asset.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The useful lives are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

33%
14%-33%
14%-20%
20%

Computer equipment
Office equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.

Investment properties

Investment property is property held either to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or for both, but not held for sale in the ordinary course of
business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Investment property is measured at cost on
initial recognition and subsequently at fair value with any change therein
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
fREMIBREM S (E)

31 March 2016
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on trade date where

the purchase or sale of a financial asset is under a contract whose terms

require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the

market concerned, are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction

costs, except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through

profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair value. During the year, the

Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and receivables which are

subsequently accounted for as follows:

)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses. Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss,
are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the asset have been impacted. Objective evidence of
impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

—  default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation; or

—  significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Financial assets (Continued)

i)

i)

Impairment of financial assets

If any such evidence exists, impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate, where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively where financial assets
carried at amortised cost share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result
in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
and other receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but
not remote. In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade and other receivables and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset, or where appropriate, a shorter period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e HRERMEE (8)

31 March 2016

—ET-XF=A=1+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Financial assets (Continued)

iv)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises financial assets only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39.

(f) Financial liabilities and equity instrument issued by the Group

)

i)

i)

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, including trade payables, other payables, deposit
received and accruals and borrowings are initially measured at fair
value, net of transaction costs and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest
expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life
of the financial liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f

(9)

(h)

Financial liabilities and equity instrument issued by the Group
(Continued)

iv)  Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a creditor to
settle a financial liability in whole or in part as a result of renegotiating
the terms of that liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and measured at
their fair value on the date the financial liability or part thereof is
extinguished. If the fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot
be reliably measured, the equity instruments are measured to reflect
the fair value of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss
for the year.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits held at
call with banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Operating leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets
concerned to the lessees. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on the
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received
and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are also
spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

4.

& AT R R M R ()

31 March2016 —F—A<"F=A=+—H

S2SEECR (18)

()

(9)

(h)

REBRTeemEERIERT A (&)

iv) AR EHBE

EAKE BERRR  BUBREE - AEE
RIEREHARE -

AR B RS ER A EERM A ERAET
Rz BRATEMEN 2R SREE
FrEtT 2 AT RAVTINRAE - VI FHRER
SRIEEKETED) FHE R 2 TERR
Ritg - MEBEITRATAZ A EEAN S
A2 ARATARCEHERBEZAFE
AE-RHESRAGE(HETID) ZKE
EEP N RER 2 ZRINFAER DR A

7
At ©

REKBESEHIEAB

RehkBeEEHEEBEFERES MRITEHER
ARG M EHERS REEXNEEED
R & RE\ATER=EA 2 ERERBIERE -

rema

ERNBGRCHBREENAER BRI R
B R EREETAEAR  BESHESMERE -
HitFrAMODEREEEE -

FEEERLTENA

BREREZHSWATINEBEEBNAELRENE
HAHER - ARRR LR EHEMEL 2T E
BERARFACHBEEEZREE - WHNBEHANL
BAVERRABF ©

FEEERATENA

REMERE T ZENAS DIREREREREESF

HIRNBERIIR - (FRFI LK LEHERZNENR
K fEM M 2 TR TR B F BULA B AREDBR -

BIRs RIS E AR AR 2015/16 F3k

47



48

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
fREMIBREM S (E)

31 March2016 —Z—A~F=HA=+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0]

0]

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss or
an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss
(if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount
is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or CGU) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Taxation

Taxation for the year comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities adjusted
for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for income tax purposes
and is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates expected to apply in the period
when the liability is settled or the asset is realised based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities arising from initial recognition of assets and liabilities
in a transaction which is not a business combination and at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profits are not
recognised.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the appropriate
tax rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is when an investment
property is carried at fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”.
Unless the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these
investment properties are measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of these investment properties at their carrying amounts at the
reporting date. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all the economic benefits embodied in the property
over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

m

(m

-

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, foreign
currency transactions are translated into individual entity’s functional
currency at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are included in profit or loss.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets
and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations (including comparatives)
are expressed in Hong Kong dollars using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of reporting period. Income and expenses items (including
comparatives) are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the year, in which case
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in translation reserve. Such translation differences, to the
extent attributable to the owners of the Company, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period when the foreign operations are disposed of.

Employees’ benefits
i) Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than
termination benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before
twelve months after the end of the annual reporting period in which
the employees render the related service. Short term employee
benefits are recognised in the year when the employees render the
related service.

i) Defined contribution retirement plans

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution retirement
scheme are expensed as incurred when the services are rendered by
the employees.

i) - Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
the Group recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRERMEE (8)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(0)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets which require a substantial period of time
to be ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the
Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of key management personnel of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
apply:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity
is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
the employees of the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified
in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)()) has significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(vii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or to
the Group’s parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
fREMIBREM S (E)

31 March2016 —Z—A~F=HA=+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic
partner.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates
and other similar allowances and excludes value added tax or other sales
related taxes.

i) Revenue from sales of goods is recognised upon transfer of the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the customer. This
is usually taken as the time when the goods are delivered and the
customer has accepted the goods.

i)  Software development income from provision of technical support
services are recognised when the services are rendered.

i) Rental income is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for operating leases set out in Note 4(h).

iv)  Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE AND GAINS 5.

Revenue represents the Group’s gross rental income, the invoiced value of
trading income and software development income from provision for technical
support services, after allowances for returns and discounts and net of value
added tax. An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other revenue and gains is as

& AT R R M R ()

31 March2016 —F—A<"F=A=+—H

WA ~ Efth AR W as

WABAEBEGEES BN - BHBA R ERAZ
BREE WHHRRE  INRREBERRIEE -
AREE W R EMPRA R &GS 2 AT

follows:
2016 2015
ZE-RF —ZT—FhF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT
Revenue: L ONE
Rental income HaA 1,452 1,312
Software development income from provision 2R B BRI S IR AR Y
of technical support services FERBERA 473 468
1,925 1,780
Other revenue and gains: HA A Wz
Fair value gain on investment properties (Note 15) BREMENFEWYE (HFE15) 875 625
Interest income FEWA 33 22
Sundry income HMIBA 61 11
Gain on capitalisation of loans (Note 29) BREAM U (H7E29) - 6,746
969 7,404
Revenue, other revenue and gains WA~ Eb U A Rz 2,894 9,184
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REMBREMEE (F)

31 March2016 —Z—A~F=HA=+—H

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports reviewed
by the chief operating decision-maker that are used to make strategic decisions
and to assess the performance.

The Group has three (2015: three) reportable segments. Each of the Group’s
reportable segments represents a strategic business unit that offers products
and services which are subject to risks and returns that are different from those
of other business segments. Details of the business segments are summarised
as follows:

(@ the trading business segment that engages in the trading of computer
accessories and household goods;

(b) the software development segment that engages in the development and
provision of technical support services to software and hardware products;
and

(c) the property leasing segment that engages in property leasing in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents and other unallocated head
office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude amount due to the spouse of a director, amount
due to a director, amount due to a shareholder, deferred tax liabilities and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed
on a group basis.

There was no inter-segment sale or transfer during the year (2015: HK$Nil).
Central revenue and expenses including other revenue and gains (except for
fair value gain on investment properties) and finance costs are not allocated
to the operating segments as they are not included in the measurement of the
segments’ profit/loss that is used by the chief operating decision-makers for
assessment of segment performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IREMBREM S (E)

31 March2016 —F—A<"F=A=+—H

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. NEPIMS (58)

(a) RN

(a) Business segments

Trading business  Software development  Property leasing Consolidated
gHEH BHRR NERE 58
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZB-XF ZTRF ZB-RF ZT-hF “FB-REF ZT-0F ZB-X"F “T-0F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TR FET TR TET TR FET TR TET
Revenue from external customers  RESNREFE ZIA - - 473 468 1,452 1,312 1,925 1,780
Inter-segment revenue DEEBA - - - - - - - -
Reportable segment revenue AZH/AHPYPA - - 473 468 1,452 1,312 1,925 1,780
Reportable segment (loss)/profit A 2H/AH (FR),/ 7 (724) (908) 290 244 1,981 1,500 1,547 836
Reportable segment assets AZRHHEE 195 245 16 18 42,816 43,751 43,027 44,014
Reportable segment liabilities AZHRAPAE M) (167) (14) @) (729) (684) (814) (854)
Other segment information: Hih A HER
Interest income FISWA 33 22
Fair value gain on investment RENEZNTE
properties ez - - - - 875 625 875 625
Finance costs BEMA (909) (772)
Depreciation neE 4 4 1 1 - 1 5 6
Unallocated depreciation AAEIE 2 2
Total depreciation Ees 7 8
Additions to non-current assets  RMNEIEABHEE - - 3 - - - 3 -
Unallocated additions to AAEMIEERBEE
non-current assets 5 -
Total additions to ANEFRPEERT
non-current assets 8 -
BN RS BB R AR - 2015/16 Fi#f




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
fREMIBREM S (E)

31 March2016 —Z—A~F=HA=+—H

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. NI (18)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment profit, assets and (b) CIZ2MRNI2iEN - BEENERE 2 HER
liabilities
2016 2015
ZE-XRF —ZT—FhF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FAT
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRBLAT (B518) A
Reportable segment profit A 2D T 1,547 836
Other revenue HABA 94 6,779
Corporate and other unallocated expenses PEREMRSREASZ (5,072) (5,658)
Finance costs A& R AR (909) (772)
Consolidated (loss)/profit before taxation BRELRTAR S (B518), V| (4,340) 1,185
2016 2015
—E—-XRF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FA&T
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AI2WHHEE 43,027 44,014
Cash and cash equivalents BekReEEEE 14,613 20,598
Unallocated corporate assets ROMPEEE 182 191
Consolidated total assets MEBERE 57,822 64,803
2016 2015
—EB—RE —ET—AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Liabilities afE
Reportable segment liabilities 2R HEE (814) (854)
Deferred tax liabilities BERIAAE (1,611) (1,077)
Unallocated corporate liabilities KOBEEERE
— Amount due to the spouse of a director —ERESRBERIEA (869) (1,268)
— Amount due to a director —ENESHRIEAE (4,789) (5,907)
— Amount due to a shareholder — B RR S FRIA (24,981) (24,291)
— Others —E A (1,555) (1,560)
(32,194) (33,026)
Consolidated total liabilities rAEBERTE (34,619) (34,957)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
(c) Geographic information

During the reporting period, the Group’s operations and non-current
assets other than financial instruments (specified non-current assets) are
located in Hong Kong, Taiwan and the PRC (2015: Hong Kong, Taiwan
and the PRC). The specified non-current assets information below is based
on the location of assets.

Segment information of the Group by geographical locations of customer
is presented as below:

& AT R R M R ()

31March2016 —Z—XF=A=+—H
3 BBIRE (48)
© HEIBER
RIBEHH  AEEZEBRERDEE(SRIA
(REIFRBARE) BN RNES - AERPE(=

TRF BB BERTE) - UTHEIFREDE
EERTIABEMRELRED -

BEPREMRE D ANERZ D EERNT :

Hong Kong Taiwan PRC Consolidated
Ei =) HE ]

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-XF ZZ-0%F ZB-RF 204 ZB-XF ZT-1F ZB-XF —ZT-nfF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$O000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
THEx FHT TR TAL THT FAL THT FAL
Revenue from external customers  RESNREF Z WA - 308 308 1,617 1,472 1,925 1,780
Specified non-current assets BEERBEE 5 3 4 42819 43756 42,827 43,762

(d) Information about major customers

The Group’s customer base is concentrated and there were three
customers (2015: two) with whom transactions have accounted for
10% or more of the Group’s revenue. During the year ended 31 March
2016, rental income from each of the two tenants in the property leasing
segment amounted to approximately HK$732,000 and HK$297,000,
respectively, and income from one customer in software development
segment amounted to approximately HK$309,000. During the year ended
31 March 2015, rental income from one tenant in the property leasing
segment amounted to approximately HK$711,000 and income from one
customer in software development segment amounted to approximately
HK$309,000.

(d) EBEFZEMR

FEBEPEMES  EP=2(ZZ—RF: MW
Z)BP 2R SBEREERAZ 10% A L o BB
EZT-XE-A=+—HLFE RUEHEES
HEMBHEESBE2HASKAS B4 A732,000
BT 297,000 7T - REFRESLE—BEP
{2 WAL /309,000/87C - RBIZE=T—AF=H
=+—HIEFE ROERESHE—ELHBHME
ZHBWALT11,000/87T - REMHFHESFE —%
B RS 2 WA K94 309,000 % 7T ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

& AT R R M e ()

31 March2016 —Z—A~F=HA=+—H

7. FINANCE COSTS

7. RYERUN

2016 2015
ZE-XRF —ZT—FhF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT
Interest payable to a director (Note 22) FENESFE (MiiE22) 182 230
Interest payable to the spouse of a director (Note 21)  FETESREM S (HfiE21) 37 48
Interest payable to a shareholder (Note 23) FES AR R A B (I E23) 690 420
Other loan interest HaEFHFE - 74
909 772
8. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8. PBRftAT(ER) &
2016 2015
—EB—XRE —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: BrEiAT (E518),/ 55 FI AR T 5 H
Cost of services rendered EREARFA A 70 72
Depreciation e 7 8
Minimum operating lease payments: CEAE RIRAENEE -
office premises and a staff quarter WAEYWERETERT 721 773
Auditor’s remuneration [ Gl e 560 556
Staff costs BIMA
(including directors’ emoluments): (RIEESEHS)
Salaries and other benefits Fre RHAMETR 3,589 3,723
Pension scheme contributions RIKSET B 208 243
3,797 3,966
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

& AT R R M R ()

31 March2016 —F—A<"F=A=+—H

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES' 9. EBNSHRITBASHE
EMOLUMENTS
(@ Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules in (@) RIBRIER ETRIBEBEEREH(F622F)F
relation to the disclosure under Section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies 3835 ([ 3155 ) R ARIRAI(5622GE ) (BEES
Ordinance (Cap. 622) (the Ordinance) and the Companies (Disclosure BRZEREE)([ZRA D BEZEEM0T :
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap.622G) (the
Regulation) are as follows:
Salaries,
allowances Pension
Directors’ and other scheme
fees benefits  contributions Total
e 2ER ERE
EBEHS Heb3gFl sTEIHR wEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAT
2016 —EB—RF
Executive Directors: WITESE -
Wong Hoi Wong Tz - 1,030 18 1,048
Lin En Fu MEH - 486 - 486
Non-executive Directors: FEHITES -
Lin Chien Hsin R 48 - - 48
Hsieh Yi Chen HEZE 48 - - 48
Wu Chiao Ru RRT54A 48 - - 48
Independent non-executive Directors: B IEHITES -
Chan Mei Sze BRI 48 - - 48
Chu Meng Chi KEE 48 - - 48
Lin Yan Jenny MRk 48 - - 48
288 1,516 18 1,822
2015 —EB-HE
Executive Directors: WITESE -
Wong Hoi Wong Ea=f< - 1,030 17 1,047
Lin En Fu MAEH - 486 - 486
Non-executive Directors: FEITESE -
Lin Chien Hsin R 48 - - 48
Hsieh Yi Chen EINEE 48 - - 48
Wu Chiao Ru RRT54A 48 - - 48
Independent non-executive Directors: B IEHITES ¢
Chan Mei Sze BREFF 48 - - 48
Chu Meng Chi Kot 48 - - 48
Lin Yan Jenny RER 48 - - 48
288 1,616 17 1,821

There were no arrangements under which a director waived or agreed to

waive any emoluments, and neither incentive payment nor compensation

for loss of office was paid to any director during the current and prior year.

RAFERBEFE  BREMNEERELRER
BEMME 2 25 AR B N k=
Bz WES T T EAESE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
fREMIBREM S (E)

31 March2016 —Z—A~F=HA=+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 9. EENSRITHRAE S (88)

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(o) Details of emoluments paid to the five highest paid individuals during the b) RFAMNAERSFALIEEMNEES(ZZE—H
year included two directors (2015: two directors) whose emoluments are F:MBES) ZINMe BRI E - REA -
set out above. Details of remuneration of the remaining three (2015: three) REFZHT=Z(ZT—1F:  =2)BZ=5EE
highest paid employees of the Group during the year are as follows: ZME 2 FIEEINAT ¢

2016 2015
ZE-XRF —ZT—FRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FAT
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e EMREMET 915 940
Pension scheme contributions RIKSETEME R 40 41
955 981
The aggregate emoluments of each of the highest paid employees were AEERBAFESHESFEE M LEHER
less than HK$1,000,000 for the current and prior years. 1,000,000/8 T °
The aggregate emoluments of each of the members of senior management EREREEKE 2 S EE T FNEE N

were within the following bands:

2016 2015

—E-XRF —ET—RF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE N

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z% 1,000,000 7T 7 7
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 A 7LZ 1,500,000 47T 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

10.PENSION SCHEMES

11

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of those employees who are eligible to
participate in the scheme. The MPF Scheme has operated since 1 December
2000. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate in the PRC are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a
percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The central
pension scheme is responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
all retired employees and the Group has no further obligations for the pension
payments on post-retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.

The Group’s contributions to pension schemes for the year ended 31 March
2016 amounted to HK$208,000 (2015: HK$243,000).

.TAXATION

(@) Taxation for the year

11.

e BREMEE (E)

31 March2016 —Z—X~"F=A=+—H
RikE st Sl
REBRBEEFERBESFENED  REMEAERKS

Aﬁ%ZﬁAk\mﬁﬁﬂ& e RRBAE S (5
&) - BEESFEE = ?§%¢+—H—Ht$
ﬂ AEBZEEEARF SR —ADLFLHK - NA
RIFRTESF B BE L RS ERR mm% ﬁﬁ
AEZEETNBEYLERAS  BEAKEZEEDFEF
B AKERRRS AL ZBEIHAEHBREREMR

Ao

RABEEE 2 ARAMBEAR 2 REAZEHEHTIER
B2 R REAREFE - ZETEMBARIARNE
R—BotAPRERKREFEERHI - hREKREF
AN RO RINERZMARKE  MAKEBA
ERHFIAIDZ RNEBFAFEEMRASEE

REZEZZT—R"EF-A=+—HBLFE  A£EELR
K& s E138208,000/8 T (= F —H 4 : 243,000/ 7T) ©

st I8

(@) AFEHHA

2016 2015

ZE-RF —ZT—FhF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHExT FAT

Deferred tax for the year NIRRT A 602 540

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax, PRC enterprise income tax and
Taiwan enterprise income tax has been made as the Group has sustained
estimated tax losses for both years.

RAREE R EFES R E G ARER - 800
BERBEMNER  PRCEMEHREEDLEMR
SoisE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REMBREMEE (F)

31 March 2016 =—Z—~"F=HA=+—H

11.TAXATION (Continued)

1 1 T’EI,E\ (mE)

(@) Taxation for the year (Continued) @ AFEHBIEGE)
Taxation for the year can be reconciled to (loss)/profit before taxation per AFEEHBERRGEBEENEtM2ERERTE
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income BRLRT (B18),/S5A 2 SR T -
as follows:
2016 2015
—E-KREF —ZT—FRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (B51B), SR A (4,340) 1,185
Taxation (credit)/charge calculated at #£16.5% (ZF—HF : 16.5%)
Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% ZEBFESHBERAE 2
(2015: 16.5%) (F0BR),FTARIE (716) 196
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses T‘HD?RS%S‘ZZ?R?“ R 943 1,008
Effect on different tax rate of subsidiaries REMENEREELE ZHE AT
operating in the other jurisdictions TRBER 2 204 184
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses RIERRIBERB BB E 177 266
Tax effect of non-taxable items TAERIBE 2 RS2 (6) (1,114)
Taxation for the year REEFERIE 602 540
() The components of recognised deferred tax liabilities are as follows: (b) BHERELEHBEEZEXBAIWT
Accelerated Revaluation of
depreciation investment
allowance properties Total
o E
e REYES st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FET
At 1 April 2014 R-ZE—NFINA—H 224 313 537
Charge for the year RE 384 156 540
At 31 March 2015 R-ZE—RF=A=+—H 608 469 1,077
Charge for the year NS 383 219 602
Exchange realignment INEFHEE (40) (28) (68)
At 31 March 2016 RZZ—R"F=A=+—H 951 660 1,611
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

11.TAXATION (Continued)

(c) The components of unrecognised deductible temporary differences are as

& AT R R M R ()

31 March2016 —F—A<"F=A=+—H

11. TIA (4&)

(€ RERAHRERHIEZER ZEKIIIT

follows:
2016 2015
ZE-RF —ZT—FhF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Unutilised tax losses REARIAEIE
PRC subsidiaries A BB A A 6,118 8,101
Taiwan subsidiary BENBAF 5,142 11,709
Companies operating in Hong Kong REBLE 2 RF 22,358 22,358
33,618 42,168
Provision B 1,128 1,128
Decelerated tax allowances BRTETE - 3
34,746 43,299
Note: MsE -

Deferred tax assets in respect of the deductible temporary differences have not been
recognised in the financial statements owing to the absence of objective evidence in
respect of the availability of sufficient taxable profits that are expected to arise to offset
against the deductible temporary differences.

The unutilised tax losses accumulated in the PRC subsidiaries and the Taiwan
subsidiary would expire in five years and ten years from the respective year of loss
sustained respectively. The unutilised tax losses accumulated in those group entities
operating in Hong Kong can be carried forward indefinitely.

12.DIVIDEND

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during the year (2015:
HK$Nil).

13.(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 March 2016 is
based on the loss attributable to owners of the Company of HK$4,933,000
(2015: profit attributable to owners of the Company of HK$655,000) and
weighted average of 225,570,261 (2015: 220,499,770) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

The Company has no dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding during the
years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015. Accordingly, the basic and diluted (loss)/
earnings per share for the respective years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015 are
the same.

BN FEUE R AR B EHE S 2 ERRDUE T R AR A
MR EREER - B ERPBRERAR AT RIE
ERERBERHAE -

FERBENBARRE L ADAHEABRBA RN EEZ
EREFEERFARTFAYR - REBLEZRRZRE
FABIRR B AT R IS o

12. RS2

AARRKEERGEEREREARE (T —HEF -
BT -

13. SR (B518), Bl

REE-Z—XR"FEFZA=Z+—"BHLFE FHREAERE
TR AN A R A A FEML 518 4,933,0008 T (ZZ— R4 -
AQREE AL T 655,000 70) M FRE BT hE
F 15 % 225,570,261 (% ( = ZF — AL F : 220,499,770
BR)ETHE -

RBE-_T-—R"E=ZRA=+—BERZZT—HF=R
=+—RBIEFE ARRAUEFNRETE N 2 ZEK -
Bt BE-_T-R"FER_T-AF=A=+—HBILF
B2 SREAREE (F1R), BFER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
fREMIBREM S (E)

31 March2016 —Z—A~F=HA=+—H

14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. M% - MERR
Furniture
Computer Office and Motor
equipment equipment fixtures vehicles Total
BiRE BRAERE BRREE "E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAET FAET FAT FHT
Cost: B
At 1 April 2014 A\—ZE—FMA—A 587 1,190 395 217 2,389
Written off bz (4 — _ _ )
At 31 March 2015 RZZE-—RF=A=+—H 583 1,190 395 217 2,385
Additions NE 3 5 - - 8
At 31 March 2016 R-ZZE-XE=A=1+—-8 586 1,195 395 217 2,393
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHiNE -
At 1 April 2014 RZZE-—MFMNA—H 581 1,176 395 217 2,369
Charge for the year REEZ M 3 5 - - 8
Written off s @) - - - )
At 31 March 2015 R-ZZE—RF=A=+—H 580 1,181 395 217 2,373
Charge for the year AFEEZH 3 4 - - 7
At 31 March 2016 R-ZZE-XE=A=1+—-8 583 1,185 395 217 2,380
Carrying amount: BREE
At 31 March 2016 RZE-X"EZA=+—-H 3 10 - - 13
At 31 March 2015 R-ZZE—RF=RA=+—H 3 9 - - 12
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

& AT R R M R ()

31 March2016 —F—A<"F=A=+—H

15. I EME

HK$'000
FHT

Fair value: NE
At 1 April 2014 RZZE—MFMA—H 43,125
Change in fair value included in other gains (Note 5) B AE bzt 2 A F(EEE) (Hi5E5) 625
As 31 March 2015 RZZE—hAF=A=1+—H 43,750
Change in fair value included in other gains (Note 5) B AE Uiz 2 A FEES) (FH5E5) 875
Exchange realignment HINGEE 5 EE (1,811)
At 31 March 2016 REB-REF=ZA=+- 42,814

The rental income earned by the Group from its investment properties leased out
under operating leases amounted to HK$1,452,000 (2015: HK$1,312,000) for
the year. Direct operating expenses arising on the investment properties in the
year amounted to HK$70,000 (2015: HK$72,000).

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 March 2016 has
been arrived at on market value basis carried out by RHL Appraisal Limited, an
independent firm of professional valuer who holds a recognised and relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in the location and category
of the investment properties being valued.

The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring fair value
measurement. A reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value balance is
set out in the above table.

AEEREERARBLCERERAZ HEMEMBH
e WA E1,452,0008 L (= F—HF : 1,312,000/8
7)o NFEREEMEMEENEELLHE 470,000
B (ZZ—R4F : 72,00087T) °

R-E-RFZA=t - RAEEEZREMEZAFE
TRB ERGERMAFITHERBERARZTER
EEEMSE  KFTHEERERA RS EERT X
HEAEEER  YRHENKREMENCERERIAR
HHRAAEER

RAMENRFERFEIMAEEUERFENE - BUIRH
RAFEEHFOE RN LXK -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
fREMIBREM S (E)

31 March2016 —Z—A~F=HA=+—H

15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Change in unrealised gain for the year included in profit or loss for investment
properties held at 31 March 2016 amounted to HK$875,000 (2015:

HK$625,000).

The major inputs used in the fair value measurement of the Group’s investment

15. 1IR&EM* (18)

625,000787T) °

RZZE—RNE=ZA=+—ARBFREVESFALREE
BEBRZ AEE WS EE) 48750008 T (T —HEF ¢

REERENEQNFEFEMBZEEWABERART

properties are set out below: X :
2016 —ZE—RF
Relationship of
Investment Fair value Valuation technique unobservable inputs
properties hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs to fair value
RERMTR FABEHIBER T
REME NREZER FEBABE BERTUEEBARE (= 1S
Commercial units Level 3 Comparison approach Recent market asking price of comparables, The higher the asking
[EEX:Av FE 3R The key input is recent taking into account of the discount on asking price, the higher the
market asking price of price and size between the subject properties fair value
comparables and the comparables, ranging from HK$33,000 & &H{g - BIAFE
thEOR to HK$39,000 per square meter. =
FE# AR AT ALLEE 2T EATISRE - KE BB R
LBz S RE BiEMEEn B Es N BEHEGTH
33,000 # 7T Z 39,000 7T
Car park spacing Level 3 Comparison approach Recent market asking price of comparables, The higher the asking
located in the F3M The key input is recent taking into account of the discount on asking price, the higher the

same building

of the above

commercial units
IR HE s

fIBRAREZ A

EXivi

market asking price of
comparables

teESE
T ERABE R
LHESAE AL 2 TS (E
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price and location between the subject
properties and the comparables, ranging from
HK$313,000 to HK$438,000 per car park
spacing.

AILLECAE N 2T TS EE - LEERERN
K B R L ESABE A 2 - SERE
JHEE(Z 313,000/ 7L E 438,000 7 7T

fair value
EERS  AATE

B



15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IREMBREM S (E)

31 March2016 —F—A<"F=A=+—H

15. IR&EM* (18)

REBRENEQNFEAEBMAZIEHABERINT
S(#8) -

The major inputs used in the fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
properties are set out below: (Continued)

2015 —E-HF

Relationship of

Investment Fair value Valuation technique unobservable inputs
properties hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs to fair value
fRE R R FABRBEELTF
REWHE DNHEER FTEBARE ERTABEBABE BEzEE
Commercial units Level 3 Comparison approach Recent market asking price of comparables, The higher the asking
PEEN FE IR The key input is recent taking into account of the discount on asking price, the higher the
market asking price of price and size between the subject properties fair value
comparables and the comparables, ranging from HK$33,000 &5 H{& - BIAFE
837N to HK$35,000 per square meter. =
T EEABIE AT AILB ¥ 2 ETISRHE - KEEREF
LY 2 TS HE BEMEEA L RME LN/ BERETH
33,000/ L% 35,000 87T
Car park spacing Level 3 Comparison approach Recent market asking price of comparables, The higher the asking
located in the F3M% The key input is recent taking into account of the discount on asking price, the higher the
same building market asking price of price and location between the subject fair value
of the above comparables properties and the comparables, ranging from EEBRE - AIAFE
commercial units LEBUE HK$225,000 to HK$375,000 per car park Eares
fIPAERE Pt T ER AR R spacing.
RIERAREZ A Lz TisEE ALY 2T EITISM(E - KZEREH -
EXivi BRmEEA L RYECAE - HEREES

B E 225,000 7T 2 375,000 57T

RNHEREDRE LM ESS REERSE  BETR
R EER o

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’ highest and best
use, which does not differ from their actual use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
fREMIBREM S (E)

31 March2016 —Z—A~F=HA=+—H

16.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. FIEMB AT 2 iExS

The details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2016 are as follows: REZZ—A"F=ZA=+—0 KBARZFHBLOT :

Issued ordinary Percentage of

Place of incorporation/ shares/registered equity attributable

Name of company registration and operation capital paid up to the Company Principal activities

ERTEER RN BELS

ARER EE AL, R R S i B BREMER REBDLE ETEEK

Subsidiary held directly

HESEZHEAR

Thiz Technology Group British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong US$100 100 Investment holding

Holdings Limited RBRLES /B 100%7T BB

Subsidiaries held indirectly

BHESEZHELR

Thizlinux Inc. British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong US$1 100 Investment holding
RBRELES B 13T REER

Thizbiz Inc. British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong US$1 100 Investment holding
REBRELES /B 13T REERR

Thiz.com Inc. British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong US$200,000 100 Investment holding
RBRZRE/ B 200,000%7T REERR

Kingray International Inc. British Virgin Islands/Taiwan US$2,000,000 100 Investment holding
EBRAHS/BE 2,000,000 7T REZER

Thiz.com (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 Investment holding and

BNBSFI B 55,87 (F35) EE 10,0007%87C provision of management

BRAR] services
REER IR HE IR

Thiz Design Group Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 Investment holding and

BE 10,000/ 7T provision of management

Thiz Technology Group Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IREMBREM S (E)

31 March2016 —F—A<"F=A=+—H

16.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 16. FiGFIE A Sl &% (5&)
The details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2016 are as follows: RZE—ARFE=ZA=+—H WBARZHFBWET:
(Continued) (&)
Issued ordinary Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ shares/registered equity attributable
Name of company registration and operation capital paid up to the Company Principal activities
ERTEER N ) 2
RRERE MRS, R S B HEEMER BEESEE EEK
EBERHERE Taiwan NT$1,700,000 100  Trading business
BRI E SL AT B PR 1 A) AE 1,700,000 T & ¥ EEES

N3 =
BED QA

Beijing Thiz Ying Jia PRC, limited liability company US$1,750,000 100 Trading business
International Trading FE - BRETERR 1,750,000 %7 RS
Co., Limited (“Ying Jia”)
(Note)

1L BN 2 52 B
BEARLAR (&)

(HMI5E)
ThizLinux Software (Shenzhen) PRC, limited liability company US$1,300,000 100 Provision of technical support
Company Limited (Note) PR BRETAR 1,300,000 & 7T to Linux based software and
BNes Rt ORYID) AR A R (1) hardware products
R Linux BRE M E @
2B E
B (8 BREARAR PRC, Limited Liability company US$340,000 100 Property investment
(Note (“Jing Rui”) HE - AREERF 340,0003% 7T MERE
e D)
Note: The subsidiaries are registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under the PRC Wit ZEWB AT JIIREHBEEEFM I IEEELE -
law.
In the opinion of the directors, the above subsidiaries principally affected the BEERA LMBAREAEBRAFEXEEERY
results of the Group for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets LU BRKEEFECEEZIG - MiKREHEMHEAR
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the ZHE  ERAIRARSFEEARBRITE -

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
fREMIBREM S (E)

31 March2016 —Z—A~F=HA=+—H

17.TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

17. B R H b EUWGRIA - & NFRITRIA

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT
Trade receivables FEUBRIA 27 51
Other receivables, deposits and HA IR - 12$ RIERIA
prepayments, net of allowance (MBEHE) 355 392
382 443
(@ The average credit period to the Group’s customers is 90 days (2015: @ AEEBRTEFZFHEEHAOAZE—RF:

90 days). As at 31 March 2016, the ageing analysis of the Group’s trade
receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts, based on the invoice date
was as follows:

9Q0R) RZZE—A"F=-A=+—8 REEZ=EH
FTEZASERERE (ENRRERE) 2RES
AranT

2016 2015

—E—RF —ET—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

0 - 30 days 0Z30H 27 27
Over 360 days 360 HLA L - 24
27 51

At 31 March 2016, the Group’s trade receivables of HK$280,000 (2015:
HK$280,000) were individually determined to be impaired. Consequently,
an accumulated specific allowances for doubtful debts of HK$280,000
(2015: HK$280,000) was made. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

Thiz Technology Group Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

RZT—X"F=F=+—H ' K%M 280,000%
TL(ZZF— R : 280,000/ 7T ) 2 & U BR 18 1% 18 51
EEALERE - Bt - AEBBERBEFEED
280,000/ L (ZZ—H%F : 280,000/870) 2 25HR
BRRFE RS - AEEWER RS AR TR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

17.TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

(o)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are past due but not impaired
are as follows:

& AT R R M R ()

31 March2016 —F—A<"F=A=+—H

17. B RHEMEWRIE - BRERFAMTRIA
(#&)

(®)

RRfEZ DE SRR Z BRI DTN -

2016 2015

ZE-RF —ZT—FhF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FAT

Neither past due nor impaired N s B ORI B 27 27
More than 6 months but not more than #ARG1E A LA BT EBR 12 E A

12 months past due - 24

Over one year —F LA - -

27 51

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a small
number of independent customers that have no recent history of default.
Accordingly, the management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there have not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

At 31 March 2016, the Group’s other receivables of HK$848,000 (2015:
HK$848,000) were individually determined to be impaired. Consequently,
an accumulated specific allowances for doubtful debts of HK$848,000
(2015: HK$848,000) was made. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

ERMERBNEERRBEAREESRFEET
B PBBYRFERH ARERERE  BME
REZRLEERBREH NZFERDRERTTE
Fml - WHERZFERELIRERE - AEH
A B 52 A BR T B (TR A

RZT—AREF=A=+—H &% [HE 848,000/
JL(ZZ—A4 : 848,000/8 7T ) 2 E b & W 5k I8 1% (&
FIEEALTEE - At - AEEERBEZER
BN AT U B i fE H 848,000 0 (ZF — A4 ¢
848,000 7T) 2 RET RRFFE M - AEBE WA
ZE AR EEARAR -

BIRs RIS E AR AR 2015/16 F3k
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

& AT R R M e ()

31 March2016 —Z—A~F=HA=+—H

18.BANK BALANCES AND CASH

18. ROTBERIRE

2016 2015

—E—RE —T—hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FHAIT

Bank balances and cash RITEFRERES 14,613 20,598

At 831 March 2016, included in the Group’s bank balances and cash were
amounts of approximately HK$4,180,000 (2015: HK$3,118,000) denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB”) and kept in the PRC. RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies. However, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

19.TRADE PAYABLES

RZB—RNE=ZA=1+—0 25£EZRTEGFERS
A 474,180,000 70 (= F— A4 : 3,118,000/ 70) LAA R
BIAREDAEE  UHEHRFE - ARBTATEHR
BHMER - Al - REBFBINEBIZRE RERE &
ERNEEERTE  AEE B BEREEITINE R
ZHRITHBMARBAEMER -

19. [EFTERIA

2016 2015

—E-XF —T-hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FHAIT

Trade payables FEISERIE - 63

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchase
which have aged over 360 days as at 31 March 2015.

20.0THER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND

EBNRBETIZEEESRBZRE
T-hF=A=+—HEHBHEI0H

B HRER

20. Efh[EfTRIA - EWiR & KRIESHRRIE

ACCRUALS
2016 2015
—E-XRF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHAIT
Deposit received BlES 524 516
Other payables and accruals HAth B 5RIE R BT RUE 1,301 1,324
1,825 1,840
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

21.AMOUNT DUE TO THE SPOUSE OF A DIRECTOR

The amount is unsecured, interest bearing at Hong Kong prime rate calculated
on a monthly basis and repayable on demand. Interest charged during the year
amounted to HK$37,000 (2015: HK$48,000).

22.AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

It represented amount due to Mr. Lin Chien Hsin of HK$4,789,000 (2015:
HK$5,907,000) which is unsecured, interest bearing at Hong Kong prime rate
per annum. Mr. Lin Chien Hsin has confirmed in writing that no demand for
settlement of the principal amount of HK$3,189,000 and accrued interest of
HK$1,600,000 would be made within 12 months from the end of reporting
period. Interest charged during the year amounted to HK$182,000 (2015:
HK$230,000).

23.AMOUNT DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER

The amount is unsecured, interest bearing at 3% per annum. On 31 March
2016, the shareholder confirmed in writing that no demand for the settlement of
the principal amount of HK$23,000,000 (2015: HK$23,000,000) and accrued
interest of HK$1,981,000 (2015: HK$1,291,000) would be made on or before 30
June 2017. Interest charged during the year amounted to HK$690,000 (2015:
HK$420,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2015, pursuant to the subscription agreement
dated 20 June 2014 entered into between the Company and a shareholder,
the shareholder agreed to subscribe for an aggregate of 100,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company at HK$0.1 each to partially settle the amount to
the extent of HK$10,000,000 due from the Group. A gain of approximately
HK$3,900,000 arising from settlement of this debt is recognised in the profit
or loss as part of the amount of HK$6,746,000 stated in Note 24(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

21.

22.

23.

e BREMEE (E)

31 March2016 —Z—X~"F=A=+—H

BTSSR mMRIA

JEfE 2 FRIB TR - A AREERN XA B (RAEE
LT HE) RBREKEERE - NFEEMNFIEA37,0008 T
(ZZ—F4 : 48,0008 7T) °

[EfTESBFRIA

JRE A5 BRI S8 A 2 3R T8 4,789,000 TT( =2 — FH 4 ¢
5,907,000 7T ) JY IR IR RIZEBREBFFELE « M
BMAENERFAER  EEaREHAETZEAR

& BREE FIE 3,189,000 7% 7T & JE 51 7 2. 1,600,000
BT AEEEMNF B A182,0008 T (T — HF
230,000/ 7T) °

& (TARSRFRIA

FER AR FIE AR - IR FFIES% TS ©
F=A=+—8" ;Zk%iﬁﬁ&p%#_ff—ti/\ﬁ
=+ HAB TS ESRkEERIE 23,000,000/ (=2 —H
% : 23,000,000 7T ) K &5 A1 81,981,000 T (= F
—H4 :1,291,000/87T) © FAHIBRF]EE 690,000 7T
(ZZ—FH4F : 420,000/87T) °

—F—R

RZZE—RAF=A=+—BILFE  REAAREZA
%aTiEIEIHZ%_?—@E/\H_-f—EIE’\JEEE%T;?%E **?H
RAEAGIREEO0.18 TR 22 & 100,000,000 & &
AR - LAET 3B FE Y AN £ B £ 58 /4 10,000,000 % 7T ©
l,\u:@iﬁt%a“%éisﬁuﬁz*ms900,0005%7%55@?%?&@5&
R A BT REMIGE 24() © 1E/56,746,000/87L,2 — 5P

,(/'\ °

J’L
X
o
X
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

& AT R R M e ()

31 March2016 —Z—A~F=HA=+—H

24.SHARE CAPITAL 24. BZIR
Number of Number of
shares shares
of HK$0.1 each of HK$1 each HK$’000
BREE1ER BREE1ET
MR & E HRGEE FTERT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares Tk
At 1 April 2014 R=ZE—NFMA—A 4,300,000,000 - 430,000
Share consolidation (Note (b)) Bfn &6 (B EE (o) (4,300,000,000) 430,000,000 -
At 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2016 RZZE-—RF=A=+—H
k=Z—RF=ZA=1+—H - 430,000,000 430,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE
Ordinary shares LBk
At 1 April 2014 RZE—NEFNMA—H 2,082,737,250 - 208,274
Capitalisation of loans (Note (a)) EFERNE (M (@) 172,965,360 - 17,296
Share consolidation (Note (b)) &9 & B (Bl 3 (b)) (2,255,702,610) 225,570,261 -
At 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2016 RZZE—HE=A=+—H
kZZ-REF=A=+—H - 225,570,261 225,570
Note: 5T -
(@)  Pursuant to the subscription agreements dated 20 June 2014 entered into between (a) WREARADAE—ZE=ZFERARRRE] —ZRE (45

the Company and each of a third party lender and a shareholder of the Company,
(collectively the “Subscribers”) respectively, the Subscribers agreed to subscribe
for and the Company agreed to issue and allot for an aggregate of 172,965,360
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at the issue price of HK$0.1 per share to settle
the loans to the extent of approximately HK$17,296,000 owed by the Group to
the Subscribers. The subscriptions were completed on 17 July 2014. A gain of
approximately HK$6,746,000 representing the difference between the nominal/
subscribed value of approximately HK$17,296,000 and the fair value of the shares of
approximately HK$10,550,000 was recognised in profit or loss for the last year with the
corresponding amount of HK$6,746,000 debited to share premium account.

(b) At the annual general meeting held on 26 September 2014, the shareholders of the (0)
Company approved the implementation of share consolidation on the basis that every
10 issued and unissued then existing ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each in the share
capital of the Company was consolidated into 1 consolidated ordinary share of HK$1
each.
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BIRBADR-ZZ—NFAZTRATLZRERE - R
BARERE MARTRBEAETESREE BT
1M LB A $£172,965,360 A AL - DUBEASEE L KRR
BANIHER - 2L 517,296,000/ - REFEDR
ZZE-MEEA+HEHTK - EE/REEL 17,296,000
TLERRR A A FE4Y 10,550,000 7 7T 2 2 BB E A4 496,746,000
Bz W BEREAFEBZEER - 1882 %6,746,000 4
TURRR s BRI ©

NEF-EFNAAZTRARTOREFARE - ARFK
RELEZERMGEN - HEERADNRRAHE+RERE
B0 1B BEITRABITRE EARAHRARRBA
h—REE1.0ETZAHEEK -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

& AT R R M R ()

31 March2016 —F—A<"F=A=+—H

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 5 August 2004. The Share Option
Scheme remained in force for ten years from 5 August 2004 during which
the directors may make offer to grant share options to eligible participants.
The Share Option Scheme had expired and no share options were granted,
exercised and lapsed during the year ended 31 March 2015. No share options
were outstanding as at 31 March 2015.

25.CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES 25. Ol ¥ AR B A%
Number of Number of
shares shares
of HK$0.1 each of HK$1 each HK$’000
SREEO.1 BTN SREE1ET
RHEA HRGEE FExT
Authorised: EIE
Non-voting convertible R EREATIRARE TR
preference shares
At 1 April 2014 R-T—WFMA—A 900,000,000 - 90,000
Share consolidation e rr=xid (900,000,000) 90,000,000 -
At 31 March 2015 and RZE—RF=A=+—H
31 March 2016 rZZ—RF=ZA=+—H - 90,000,000 90,000
The Company had no outstanding issued convertible preference shares as at 31 RIBE—RER_ZE—RNF=A=1+—H  KXAFEXK
March 2015 and 2016. FIE B BT AHRAREBSEAR -
At the annual general meeting held on 26 September 2014, the shareholders of REZZB—MENA -+ NERTORERAELE - AR
the Company approved the implementation of share consolidation on the basis FIREREZERNDEGH  HEEARQTRAFE+
that every 10 unissued preference shares of HK$0.1 each in the share capital of BEEREENIEITZ REITIRAEELERAHANATIK
the Company was consolidated into 1 consolidation preference share of HK$1 A —REE.0BTTZ A FHELRD -
each.
26.SHARE OPTION SCHEME 26. AR ESTE!

BE-ZTTMOE/\ALABB TRRER  ARFK
MBS B ([RE ST 81 )) - B M —TF
MENARHBEFERTF  EFARZEARAEE
RBEEZZREBIRE - BREFSEIH R=F
—HAF=RA=+—HLEFE #HERL  TELEHE
ERE N —RAF=A=1T—H  BERETE
ZFERRHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
fREMIBREM S (E)

31 March2016 —Z—A~F=HA=+—H

27.RESERVES

@)

27. %

Capital redemption reserve @@ BAELZE
The reserve represents the amount equivalent to the nominal value of the ZEEBEEEN AR RRBEFEELE ZTHER
Company’s shares cancelled arising from repurchased shares in prior B2 £ %58 °
years.
Special reserve (o) HFRIGEME
The reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of FRFEHEARRRNAEEALEBERRRKRO R
the shares of the Company and the nominal value of the shares of the BlEMR TR EABEAREEREIRENE A
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the reorganisation to rationalise the AR (B 2 =58 °
structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the Company’s
shares on the GEM.
Translation reserve € EHHEE
The reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the BN HHREMEAREBIINEBMBREMEE
translation of the financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is ZIENZRE o ZREBIEM4) TS Q5T BURERE -
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note 4().
Reserves of the Company d) AREZRFEE
Capital
Share redemption Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
RAEE EXBEHE Byt @t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FAL FHT FHT
(Note 27(a))
(Ft5E27(a)
Balance at 1 April 2014 RZB-RENA—B 2 &4 34,018 84 (209,115) (175,013)
Loan capitalisation (Note 24(a)) BEFEME (17T 24(a)) (6,746) - - (6,746)
Loss and total comprehensive BERKNEE
income for the year FEUEEE - - (680) (680)
Balance at 31 March 2015 RZE-RF=ZA=+-8kK
and at 1 April 2015 “E-REMA-BrEH 27,072 84 (209,795) (182,439)
Loss and total comprehensive BERAFE2ENESE
income for the year - - (1,990 (1,990
Balance at 31 March 2016 RZE-—REZA=+—-RAz#&H 27,272 84 (211,785) (184,429)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

27.RESERVES (Continued)

(d) Reserves of the Company (Continued)

The Company had no distributable reserves at 31 March 2016. Under the
Companies Law (Cap. 22 Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands, the share premium is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company, provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividends is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

28.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

e BREMEE (E)

31 March2016 —Z—X~"F=A=+—H

27 i;%f% (mE)
(d) AAEZEHE ()

ARABRZZT—R E)E] E"’ A 3 £ 7] 5 Ik

# - REREFHSRRVE(—NR E%Sﬂ/ﬂ %5

22% - irE RIERT) %5@@ #=D IR E B

RATBIRESEER %%WP@JHHZFF [qrap 3]
ARIRTARRARR °

28. IR S FFIRIRIRE

COMPANY
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
b FExT FET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries 5 B AR 2 s 46,126 46,126
Current assets REBEE
Bank balances and cash BOTHETERES 4,065 43
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables A FEAT K8 837 827
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE(AE) FE 3,228 (784)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 49,354 45,342
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR NEPNGIE S 8,213 2,211
Net assets EERE 41,141 43,131
EQUITY E=
Share capital (& 24 225,570 225,570
Reserves ] 27(d) (184,429) (182,439)
Total equity SRR 41,141 43,131

Director

WONG HOI WONG

e

Director
LIN EN FU
FE
MEH

BIRs RIS E AR AR 2015/16 F3k



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REMBREMEE (F)

31 March 2016 =—Z—~"F=HA=+—H

29.NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS

Major non-cash transactions

As detailed in Note 24(a), during the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company
had issued share capital with fair value of approximately HK$10,550,000 for
settlement of loans from a lender and a shareholder amounting to approximately
HK$17,296,000 and resulted in a gain of approximately HK$6,746,000 with the
corresponding amount debited to share premium.

30.0PERATING LEASES COMMITMENTS
Operating leases - lessor

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease rentals
receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

29.

30.

mERERMERMT

SAFBRERS

340 BT 3E 24(a) B &F at ARER-_TE—RAFE=A
:+—ElJtir;%éﬁﬂﬂ?ﬁ,%’q10,550,000;‘%7%3%2& '
AGEHEN—ZERAR—BRREZER  $EAHY
17,296,000 7T, + AZN4)6,746,00058 T2 Wz - 1ERES
BERRMEERINGE o

KETRSHIE
RS - BIAA

RZZB-REF=ZA=1+—08 AEERBETAIHELS
MEERREESEREZHSAFENT

2016 2015

—XNE —ZT—RfF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FHT

Within one year —FR 492 641
In the second to fifth years inclusive EEZFRF (BEEEMF) 231 289
723 930

The investment properties have committed tenants for an average term of one to
two years.

Operating leases - lessee

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had outstanding commitments under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of office premises, which fall due as

RAMEZ BP9 GERERA—FEMF

KEEE - REA

RIZB-—REF=ZA=+—8B AEERRIE=ENESA
B EME  BRARETRE  J#MBOT

follows:
2016 2015
—~EF —ZT—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Within one year —FR 159 386
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EERF(RIEERERE) - 76
159 462

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for the office
premises. Leases are negotiated for an average term of one to two years with
fixed monthly rentals.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

31.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

References are made to an announcement on 13 March 2006 in relation to a
claim of service commission of HK$3,750,000 (RMB3,000,000), together with
the interest of HK$284,000 (RMB227,000) by an ex-employee of Ying Jia, a
subsidiary of the Company in the PRC, against the Company. The ex-employee
has obtained a judgement in his favour in the court of the PRC (the “Ruling”).

The Company’s legal advisers confirmed that, under the laws of Hong Kong and
the Cayman Islands, there is no statutory mechanism for judgement made by the
courts in the PRC to be enforceable either in Hong Kong or Cayman Islands. The
directors of the Company believe that the enforceability of the Ruling is doubtful
and the Group is not liable to the claim. No provision has been made in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of this claim.

32.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Material related party transactions and balances are as follows:

(a) Balances with related parties

Details are disclosed in Notes 21, 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial

statements.

(b) Interest charged by related parties

Details are disclosed in Notes 21, 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial

statements.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel

Details of directors’ emoluments are shown in Note 9(a) to the consolidated

financial statements.

31.

32.

& AT R R M R ()

31 March2016 —F—A<"F=A=+—H

FREE

>

BRIMRZZZRNF=A+=BHE 2 MH - BHRE
AI—HHRENBRARRE —EAEEBRAARABRR
74 18 & 3,750,000 7T ( A K ¥ 3,000,000 7T ) & [A #1] &
284,000 7T (AR#227,0007T)  FEER D A A
EEBFRTHED -

N

ARNBVEAZBERER  BREERFASHEEE  #HiE
FEARDETE # I 5 F BUZE BT P (E H B DR AT R B B S 2
HEWIT - ARAIEFRE @ HERBAIMITINFES -
MAEBBERRRERE  WHTERZPRRELAZ
EAIRABERRE TG IREAEL B -
EMEATRS

BERAEBEATR G REHAOT ¢

(a) BRABALTZER

BN A M BMARMEE21 - 22 R 23 NHKEE -

(b) BRIZATHEZHR

FIERiRA M BMARMET21 - 22 R 23 NHKEE ©

(c) EBEEASZME

EEME 2 FHERN R M BEREM L) °

The remuneration of other key management during the year was as FRHEMFTEESEE MM T ¢
follows:

2016 2015
ZE-RF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Short term benefits = HRE A 915 940
Post-employment benefits RIRIEF] 40 41
955 981

The directors are of the opinion that the balances with related parties and
related interest charged by related parties which also constitute connected
transactions under the GEM Listing Rules were carried out in the normal
course of business of the Group and conducted on terms no more
favourable than normal commercial terms.

E5Rn - WAMBALZERREREALIER
ZBEBASTERAER ETRANT Z2ERS
DRAEE —REBBEFETRETER KA
ESFS At S/ GV

BIRs RIS E AR AR 2015/16 F3k
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

& AT R R M e ()

31 March2016 —Z—A~F=HA=+—H

33.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives are:

(i)  toensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern;

(i) to provide an adequate return to shareholders;

(i) to support the Group’s sustainable growth; and

(iv)  to provide capital for the purpose of potential mergers and acquisitions.

There is no change in the Group’s capital management objectives from prior
years.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of gearing ratio which is
calculated as total debts divided by total equity. Total debts are calculated as
total borrowings comprising amount due to the spouse of a director, amount
due to a director and amount due to a shareholder, as shown in Notes 21, 22
and 23. Total equity represents equity attributable to owners of the Company
comprising share capital and reserves as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The Group’s strategy is to keep the gearing ratio as low as
it can without material adverse impact on its liquidity.

33. BIMNRBEIR
REBERNEEEMNWT ¢
() MRAEEHEHNSESESERTE
(i) AREFREHEGEER
(i) ZRAKERBEEERE K
(v) IREEEARLUEITRAIAES OF R UREE -
BUGFERL AR EATE B IEWEES -
AEERBERNBEBL R (RBEBEERNBERZTHE) &
BRI - BEBENIZEREE (RERENERRBR
B - BN EE SR EN R A (M 21~ 22 % 23FT
i) o RSB ARHA AEGER - BIERAMBRK
MEFATROBAREE - AEBAREEEERFE

AAFELEPEKRTE - BT eHRBESELEEXR

FHEE -

2016 2015

—E-RF —ET-FHF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHIT

Total debts 1BIEIR 30,639 31,466
Equity T 23,518 30,152
Total debts to equity ratio LRfEIERE L R 1.3 1.0

The Group sets the amount of equity capital in proportion to its overall financing
structure. The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of
the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

Thiz Technology Group Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

AEERBERRELBUIREEASHE - AREER
HEAGER  TRBEEBRREBFEEZ BB
EHAAERE - BTRIFRFEELEARLE - AEEA
WERETERRZBSSE  MBRBERA - B1TH
Bk HEEENRERLE -

REENZIEBHEINZ EARERS -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments in the normal

course of the Group’s business are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and

currency risk.

(a)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and other
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and the exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate. Trade receivables are due
within 90 days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances that are more
than 2 months past due are requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. The default risk of the industry and
country in which customers operate also has an influence on credit risk but
to a lesser extent.

At 31 March 2016, the Group had a concentration of credit risk from one of
the five largest customers which related to software development segment
and accounted for 100% (2015: 52.9%) of the Group’s trade receivables.
There were no receivables from the remaining four (2015: four) largest
customers as at 31 March 2015 and 2016 as they either paid monthly
rentals in advance or fully settled the debts during the respective years.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their own
cash management, including the short term investment of cash surpluses
and the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to
approval by the Company’s board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from related parties and other parties to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities of the
Group’s financial liabilities at the end of reporting period, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates, or if floating, based on rates current at
the end of reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be required
to pay.

& AT R R M R ()

31 March2016 —F—A<"F=A=+—H

34. BI5 RIREIR

AEESRMTARNARXGRRETELZTERRAE

EER -

RBETER - FEREREEEREE

(a) EERMR

(b)

AEEZEERBREEmBEIEMEKKIAE
£ ERERAFEERR  UNEEESEEEEY
EERR -

BN R EMERFIAENS - A ERBRE TE
BBz EPHETEREER G - WEFEEE
SR PR B H Y R R4S Bk MR B RO 1 BE
N UEBREFPHFHARREPEEXFHEE
RIGNMER - RWIRIEMR TR B H#E00 BN EIH] -
IEBABRABERER - —ReZREE—
FEERHAEBEMGRER - E—RIERT - &
SET g ZREP RIS -

AERZFERRIEXEEZFENFUERE - &
FEETEIEARZERTEFEEERR - B2
[EHIK -

RZZ—XR"E=ZA=+—0 ZEEE100%(=F
—FRF 1 52.9%) 2 ENIRIBEAAEBERARS 2 —
FgER - WHEBHRESHBEE K22 —AF R
—E-ANFZA=+—B  AAREFHTHA(ZT
—RF R WEEKFIE - THRERRFERD
EEYNE ARG SIERESEEAE -

iGN

AEERNEBLEERARSANESER &
ERRSRBETEMRENERES - WA
HRGER  BEERSERBETNRELE -
AIBRAAREERA - AEEY HELTHE
REGHESBRREMTROZER - ARRE
HRENBRSERURAEBEALREMALR
BREMAREEEE  BUEHRESADES
BTSK -

TRIVRAEBE AR B RHERRIZC ATHREE
RRERTESREE(BERAOMN XL (BT
BIRBEREMRBITNERFEZHNE) 2 HEpE
WER - ARAEERARRABESBHEL &
AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

& AT R R M e ()

31 March2016 —Z—A~F=HA=+—H

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(c)

34. M EREIR (1&)

(b) FRENEERR (F&)

Total
contractual Within 1
Carrying  undiscounted year or on Over 1
amount cash flow demand year
EHEES: 3] R—FR
BREE ReReRn RIRER —FH0E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT FHT THET
2016 —B-RF

Other payables, deposits HinERFIE - Bl
received and accruals e RIEFTHUR 1,825 1,825 1,825 -
Amount due to a director ENEEHE 4,789 5,029 - 5,029
Amount due to the spouse of a director ERNESRBHE 869 912 912 -
Amount due to a shareholder FER AR IR 24,981 26,476 - 26,476
32,464 34,242 2,737 31,505

2015 —ZT-n%

Trade payables FERTERIE 63 63 63 -

Other payables, deposits HibEFE - BIK
received and accruals & RIEFTHOE 1,840 1,840 1,840 -
Amount due to a director ENEFHE 5,907 6,202 - 6,202
Amount due to the spouse of a director [ENESRBEHRIEA 1,268 1,332 1,332 -
Amount dug to a shareholder JERTAR R IR 24,291 25,786 - 25,786
33,369 35,223 3,235 31,988

Interest rate risk

(c) Mm@

REE 2 FEERE T ERRE BT BT ETE 2R
TR RER - RFBMEGF S ZBRRREET
KRDRAERR - NEBEHEEFERZH R
BENTX -

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank balances and
borrowings with variable interest rates. Borrowings issued at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate
profile as monitored by management is set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group at the end
of reporting period.

e BREMEE (E)

31 March2016 —Z—X~"F=A=+—H

34 ﬂﬂ}%@l‘ éig(me)
(c) MZER (48)

AT AR BN RE R FIREFE -

2016 2015
—E-xE —Z-n%F
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BRFIE BEBRH =
% HK$’000 % HK$'000
TER FAT
Bank balances RITEETF 0.1% 14,600 0.1% 20,582
Variable rate borrowings E BN EK
Amount due to a director — principal ENEEHIE-~ 5.0% 3,189 5.0% 4,230
Amount due to the spouse ENEERBTIE-1%
of a director - principal 5.0% 524 5.0% 841
3,713 5,071
Fixed rate borrowings BEMEEE
Amount due to a shareholder - principal &R FIE— A% 3.0% 23,000 3.0% 23,000
Total borrowings EEeE 26,713 28,071

The interest rates and terms of repayment of the Group’s borrowings are
disclosed in Notes 21, 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 March 2015 and 2016, a reasonably possible increase/decrease
in interest rate of 0.25% and 1% on bank deposits and variable rate
borrowings respectively, with all other variable held constant, would have
insignificant impact on the Group’s financial performance and accumulated
losses/equity for both years ended 31 March 2015 and 2016.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the
change in interest rates had occurred at the beginning of reporting period
and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for non-derivative
financial instruments in existence at the end of the reporting period. The
estimated basis points increase or decrease represent management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the end of next reporting period.

Currency risk
Currency risk to the Group is minimal as majority of the Group’s

transactions are carried out in the respective functional currencies of the
group entities.

Fair values estimation

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different from
their fair values as at the end of respective periods.

REEBER TR RERBERE T BEHREME
122 23 TR ©

%*?*£¢&*%*ﬁ¢3ﬂ5+*ﬁ-ﬁﬁﬁ
AEFNEEROFESRIEBUATRE LA T
ﬁ¢0.25%)321% AEEMEERETE - HALE
RZE—RAFER-T—A"F=A=1+—HILFEHN
PBRERRBE RENTETERE -

B EBURIE HATE B TR 2 BE KBS B %
TR + o BRI R4S BR A S e JE T4
BMIAZFISER - FRR T2 XEEE
BHEET—MFERENABN MR ToHaE
BB AT -

Si

(d) SRR

HRAEEZZGRBANEEEREAZIEE

BT BB FTAEZ B RBGRE -

(e) AHEfMS

mETRITANRENSREHSRTAZATE
HEZ DRI -
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35.ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group’s financial position and financial performance are sensitive to
accounting methods, assumptions and estimates that underlie the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements. The Group bases the assumptions
and estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that
the Group believes to be reasonable and which form the basis for making
judgements about matters that are not readily apparent from other sources.
On an on-going basis, management evaluates its estimates. Actual results may
differ from those estimates as facts, circumstances and conditions change.

The selection of significant accounting policies, the judgements and other
uncertainties affecting application of those policies and the sensitivity of reported
results to changes in conditions and assumptions are factors to be considered
when reviewing the consolidated financial statements.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the actual
results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below.

Impairment losses for trade receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses for trade receivables resulting from the
inability of the customers to make the required payments. The Group bases
the estimates on the ageing of the trade receivables balance, customer credit-
worthiness, and historical write-off experience. If the financial condition of the
customers were to deteriorate, actual write-offs might be higher than expected
and could significantly affect the results of future periods.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties included in the Group’s financial statements require
measurement at fair value, as detailed in Note 15. The fair value measurement
of which utilises market observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs
used in determining fair value measurements are categorised into different levels
based on how observable the inputs used in the valuation technique utilised are
(the “fair value hierarchy”):

o Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical items
(unadjusted);

o Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other than Level 1 inputs;
and

o Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from market data)
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IR e HRERMEE (8)

31 March2016 —Z—A~F=HA=+—H

st st R FIER

REE 2 AN R Q& AR IR EUR & MR A
Z2EFE BRRGFAAFE - AEERBBEL
B URAEERRE L RBAREEIAE &R RIRH
B =B HEER 2 ZREMER  FHZERRR
it - EEREHETEEMAG - BERAERTTERER -
RERGHEEMARTR -

EEHGEMBERERE  TESHERRNRE  PERE
RZEBERZAB REMTEERR - URSHREAY
AR RBR E8 2 FRERBEERAE -

AEBELBRARRZ EFT REE - ZHEE—
MEMEE D REREER AR ﬂﬁiﬁﬂﬁxﬁ%lﬁl
RT—ERBRFRERHEER AR RAEERERNHE
ZAEE BRI XA Fradim

MEUERIA IR B 1R

AEEGREEPENELRENRES 2 BRARAMGE
BERR - AEEREBEYCRERENREK EFPEE
FOBEME R BRIEH b5 fﬁ%ﬁﬂ@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

35.ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)
Fair value of investment properties (Continued)

The classification of an item into the above levels is based on the lowest level of
the inputs used that has a significant effect on the fair value measurement of the
investment properties.

The fair value of the investment properties was based on a valuation on these
properties conducted by an independent firm of professional valuer using
property valuation techniques which made use of those significant unobservable
inputs as mentioned in Note 15. A favourable or unfavourable change to these
inputs would result in changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties and the corresponding amount of fair gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss.

36.SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL

LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised at 31 March 2016 and 2015 may be categorised as follows:

35.

36.

& AT R R M R ()

31 March2016 —F—A<"F=A=+—H

Zstidst KAE (18)

REME 2 HE (18)

HIEADHR LB DERYZEEMERBRATAE
AERABEAFEZREERBABBEMMETE -

BREVMEZ MFEDHRBI EXGHERMRAYEGEE
(M 18 Pl 2 ERT RS BUR) BB M A
EITOME - BRARBENR TN ES T EHAKE
REVMERATEZY  URRBEZAERNIBAEAFE
Wz s gsia -

EREERENBENBIGNE

REER-_Z-—RFR-T-RF=A=+—HB®ERZ
ERMEERERABZEMEDRNT

2016 2015
ZE-RF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables BRI E 2B
(including bank balances K e IE
and cash), at amortised cost (RIERTHEETERES) 14,892 20,954
Financial liabilities SRBE
Financial liabilities, at amortised cost REHEKAGBZEREE 32,464 33,369
37.EVENT AFTER THE END OF REPORTING PERIOD 37. RSHAEEIE

Pursuant to the loan agreement dated 1 June 2016 signed between a subsidiary
of the Company and a shareholder of the Company, Extra Bright Trading Limited
(“Extra Bright”), the Group through the subsidiary borrowed an unsecured loan
amounting to HK$9,000,000 (the “Loan”) from Extra Bright in order to increase
its working capital. The Loan is interest-bearing at 3% per annum and is fully
repayable on 31 May 2019.

38.APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2016.

38.

RIEBSHA-T— R EAA—AZERGE  A£EZ
M B A 7] B % B Extra Bright Trading Limited & A & 3k
9,000,000 & TTAMNIENEEES - ZERAEER - &
EFEI%EE  BAR-E—NERA=+—BERME
= .

fERSMEIRE

EFEN T A"FAAZ T N\BHETRRTIEES
MR
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Financial Summary
MBS E

The following is a summary of the consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the NTRASEABEREFEMRR GEEEUNREERE
Group, prepared for the last five years, as extracted from the audited consolidated B2HE RSB AR KERGEVBRE - AMEL
financial statements of the Group. This summary does not form part of the audited IR EREG BT ERR ZAKERD -

consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS £

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—HLEE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-XREF —T—hF —ZT—NF —T—=F —T—=

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FHExT FHETT FHTT FT FT

Revenue A 1,925 1,780 1,350 784 15,955

(Loss)/profit from operations s (5518) /% F (3,431) 1,957 (5,589) (6,687) (8,060)

Finance costs RhE AR (909) (772) (1,247) (1,095) (960)

(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (B518), SR F (4,340) 1,185 (6,836) (7,782) (9,020)

Taxation sl (602) (540) (537) - -

(Loss)/profit for the year REE (F518), =75 (4,942) 645 (7,373) (7,782) (9,020)
Attributable to: AT AL fEL -

Owners of the Company ViN/NCIEZE DN (4,933) 655 (7,360) (7,771) (8,752)

Non-controlling interests FEPEAR = 9) (10) (13) (a1 (268)

(4,942) 645 (7,373) (7,782) (9,020)
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Financial Summary (Continued)

B
BT E (48)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENEE
At 31 March
R=A=+—8
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-XRE —T-h4F —T 04 =4 T F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT FAT FAT FAT
Non-current assets IERBNEE 42,827 43,762 43,145 24 75
Current assets MEEE 14,995 21,041 15,870 10,483 13,237
Deduct: DA
Current liabilities REEE 3,238 3,682 3,972 10,761 16,929
Net current assets/(liabilities) REVEE,/(BE)FE 11,757 17,359 11,898 (278) (3,692)
Total assets less current WEERTESEARE
liabilities 54,584 61,121 55,043 (254) (3,617)
Deduct: poE
Non-current liabilities IEMEAE 31,381 31,275 36,407 19,699 8,573
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(8E)FE 23,203 29,846 18,636 (19,953) (12,190)
BIRS RSB AR AR - 2015/16 Fif
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Particulars of Properties
JES=AH

Type Lease term

Properties held for investment BIEREWE EEill HEH
Rooms 1101, 1102,1114 and 1115, B S EREE SIS 1999 555 Commercial Medium

Car Parking Space Nos. 168,169,199 110158 ~ 110258 ~ 111458 2 111558 [GES A HR

and 200, No. 1999 Jingshajiang Road FOAERIZE 1685 « 16955 + 199 5% K& 200 5%

and Rooms 701,702,703 and 704, R&TREEE 198957 B 55 701 5% -

Car Parking Space Nos. 129, 130,131 7025 ~ 70355 & 704 55 MHEAI S 12955

and 132 No. 1989 Jingshajiang Road, 1305k + 13155 2 1325k »

Putuo District, Shanghai,

the PRC
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